LED
AT@'CLDGKPM
AGENDA ' ‘

ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT MpY 16 2025

poard ot Henth Meetiﬂg AMY FIMCHER
County Clerk, Counly

c?@, L
Angelina County o
When: 7:00 a.m., Wednesday, May 21, 2025 . r

By .
Where: Classroom/205 Shands Building

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-
join/19%3ameeting MDFINWEXYmQtMzY4YSOONmI1LWFINzctZiIESNDNiYTQ3IMDE4%40thread.
v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a3%22b47be331-a44c-4dfb-88ch-
12b914a1b9a7%22%2c%220id%22%32%22d3f1f36f-b72e-4c27-a7fb-c6165355beb0%22%7d
Meeting ID: 258 752 213 080
Passcode: SE6nv2su

A. Welcome
B. Public forum
C. Discuss and Consider the Approval of Minutes from April 9, 2025 2

D. Discuss and Consider Approval of FY2024 Annual Independent Fiscal Audit Report - Todd, Hamaker,
& Johnson Accounting Firm Presenting 5

E. Discuss and Consider Approval of Revised Policies and Procedures:

Finance Policies: 800, 801, 802, 803, 804, 805, 806, 807, 808, 809, 811, 812 66
Administrative Policy: 203 87
Benefits Policy: 302 116
Conduct Policy: 401 91
Patient Contact Policy: 700 95
Information Technology and Security Policy: 1100 97
F. Discuss and Consider the Approval of the Holiday Schedule for FY 2026 117

G. Adjourn

H. Executive Session: Per Texas Local Government Code, Section 551.074, Personnel Matters: Evaluation
of the ACCHD Administrator. 118



ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT
BOARD OF HEALTH BOARD MEETING
Classroom/205 Shands Building

April 9, 2025,
BOH MEMBERS PRESENT STAFY PRESENT
Dz, Jerry Johngon Kristina Childress, Administrator
Trey Wilkerson D, Kindrell Tucker, Medical Director
D, Karina Urquia Kaleb Ricks, Finance Assistant
Kenneth Jeftrey Yesenia Cabral-Fletcher, Director of Operations
Dr. Kyle King :
Dz, Brittany Hanes
Jesse Moody
Dr, Christina Graves
Pete Johngon
Todd Ricks
Emily Todd-Parker
BOH MEMBERS NOT PRESENT GUESTS PRESENT
Pam Hooks Krystal Garcia Riley — Attorney

The meoting was called {0 order by Mr. Moody at 7:02 AM, with a quorum present,

Item A. Welcome
Me. Moody welcomed the Board and thanked everyone for their attendance.

Hem B, Poublic Forum
No comments were made,

Itena C. Discuss and Consider Approval of Minutes from February 12, 2025

Mz, Moody presented the minutes for the beard members' consideration and approval. After review, Dr. Johnson
made a motion to approve the minutes from February 12, 2025. Second, to the motion by Dr. King, All wers in
favor, and ho one opposed.

Ttem D. Discnss and Consider Approval of Minutes Correction from Octobaor 30, 2024,

Mr. Moody presented the minutes for the board's consideration and approval, After review, Dr, Johngon made a
motion to approve the minutes from October 30, 2025. Second, to the motion by M, Ricks, All were in favor,
and no one opposed,

Item B, Discuss and Consider Approval of Financial Report FY25

Ms. Childress presentod the FY25 financial report for the Board’s consideration. Total revenue and total
expenditure were presented and discussed. The cost of operations are in positive margin. Ms, Childress reminded
the board members on the vacant finance position. Candidates are being interviewed. Dr, Hanes asked &
question on TexPool. This item will be discussed in the investment section, Dt King asked if there wero any
budget amendments, Kristina informed the board that there were no amendments for this reporting period,
however, there will be amendments reflected in the next reporting period, Mr, Moody asked a question on why
the item under Local Grants is at 1132.05%. Ms. Childress will follow up on the item and report back to the
Board. After discussion, Dr. King made a motion to approve the finaneial report for FY25. Second, the motion
made by Dr. Johnson, MCU,



Item F, Discuss and Consider Approval of Investment Reporxt

Ms. Childyess presented the investment report. The TexPool is in process. Mr. Kaleb reported on the Ingquiring
for contact changes, which were submitted, Other changes in progress are o the bank and signatore blocks. No
other questions or concerns were reported on the investment report. After the discussion, Mt J. effrey made a
motion o approve the investment report. Second, the motion made by Dr. Johnson. All were in favor, and no
one opposed.

Item G. Discuss and Consider Approval of Proposal for Health District Building Repairs

Mr. Kaleb disougged that the previous bid had expired, however, an updated bid was acquired. The location of
the repait was described and discussed. Additional cost for repair of tile i waiting arca wag described and
discussed. Bid was provided by the vendor, Langston Construction Incorporated, for a total of $25 556 with
alternate 1 of $3480 and alternate 2 of $1700 additional cost, The board asked if previous repairs have been
made to prevent further damage, Ms. Childress reported repairs have been made proviously, Mr. Peto Johnson
made a motion to approve the cost for repairs. Second moton by Dr. Johnson, All were in favor, and no one
opposed.

Item H. Discuss and Consider Update on the Status of Health Services Agreement with Angelina County
Detention Center.

Ms. Childress provided an update on several conversations with the Warden. Information on the liability
insurance application was received for around $30,000. Board members requested an exact amount, Ms,
Childress will follow up on the item and teport back to the Board. Ms. Childress and Dr. Tocker reported that
they met with Denton County Pyblic Health to gain insights into the medical operations of their detention center,
including expectations, challenges, operational costs, and resoutces allocated to run the facility efficiently.
Implementing a medical servico agreement with Angelina County Detention Center would requite an
administrator on site, 24-hour medical staff coverage, and Medical Director coverage. There would be costly
legal bills and possibly a designated legal team. Staff correctional health care certification would need to be
considered. Board members agreed that this is not an agreement the Angelina County & Cities Health District
should pursue at this time,

Ttem L Discuss and Consider Approval of Revised Health District Investment Policy.

Ms. Cabral-Fletcher and Attorney Riley discussed changes to the finance position within the policy, with efforts
to avoid changing or revising the policy due to title change. Attomey Riley discussed that one or more finance

officors can be appointed by the Board. Mr. Wilkerson made a motion to approve the changes to the policy. All
were in favor, and no one opposed. Mr. Moody signed the updated policy.

Item J. Discussed and Gathered Feedback regarding Health District Strategic Planning, Programs, and
Activities,

Ms, Childress discussed specialist access and reimbursemnent limitations. The specialty provider expressed
concerns about continuing to serve our clients if fees were not revisited, The specialist is currently paid at
Medicaid rate but requesting the Medicare rate. Dr. Tucker expressed his concerns with complications and the
burden this might cause our patients, getting sicker, and incteasing volume for our BR hospital services, Dr.
Tucker will reach out to other institutions to seek support, Guidance and feedback from the Board were
requested. The Board suggested that UT Tyler Medical Institution might be an option. The Board did not
approve an increase in rates dus to violations of contract agreements, grant rules, and state and foderal
regulations.

Ms. Childross discussed the status of the updated cooperative agreement with member governments. The City of
Lufkin and the City of Diboll have signed the updated cooperative agreement. We are waiting for other metrber
governments from the City of Zavalla, City of Huntington, and City of Hudson to provide the signed updated
coaparative agreement. On March 12, Angelina County Commissioner’s Court approved the agreement with
requested changes. Mr. Moody requested an updated version of the cooperative agreement in order for him to
follow up. Ms. Childress will follow up on the item and report back to the Boaxd.

Ms. Childress provided an update on Hutan Resources such as the vacancy of the finance position. ills.



Childress introduced Mrs, Cebral-Fletcher as new Operations Director and complimented Mr. Kaleb for his
outstanding job in the Finance department, Ms, Childress also discussed a contingency plan for the Finance
department if the hiting of the finance manager position is defayed. The contingeney plan would be to contract an
accountant ifneeded, The Board supported offering a higher salary after a probationary period to the favorable
candidate,

Ms. Childress discussed the need for the Board to evaluate her pecformance, considering she has been in the
position for two years in May 2025, Mr. Wilkerson suggested that the Board as a whole needs to disouss and
provide the evaluation, Mr, Moody suggested this will need to be an executive session at the next meeting,

Ms. Childress discussed the Health District Strategic Planning update and thanked Board members that attendsd
the kickoff. Dr. Wheeler of NOPA Leadership will be fasilitating the event on April 15, 2025, at the Lufkin
Cenvention Center from 8-3:30 pm. The Health District will continue operations with a gkeleton crew. The next
strategic planning committee meeting will be on May 7, 2025,

Ms. Childress requested a professional photo from all Board mexabers for the Health Distriet wobsite update.

Mr. Moody tequesied updates on the compensatory time policy and payout to the previous Finance Director.

Ms, Childress provided information on the need to honor the policy, considering we have team members that will
be working beyond 24 hours in case of an emergency. Attorney Riley made suggestions for provisions within
the policy that should state who will approve in case of an emergency, Board members emphasized the need to
honor the 24-hour Comp time allocation rather than paying out beyond 24 hours of comp time. Ms. Childress
suggested that we collaborate with Attorney Riley to revise the policy,

Item K. Discussed and Consider Approval regarding Zavalla WIC Office Closure

Ms. Childress diseussed challenges with the Zavalla WIC office. Challenges include finding a new location,
considering the previous location is no longer available due to fire and no water access. In addition, the volume
at the Zavalla Jocation is low, with an active participation of 8 in the last 6 months, The nearest alternative is the
Huntington clinic. The Diboll clinic is alse gvailable for services. Hours of operation for those clintcs were
shared. Board membets asked about the process for staff allocation. Ms. Childress provided information on
allocating the staff to our main office, Clients will be notified of the closure of the Zavalle office if approved by
Texas WIC. Mr. Pete Johnson mwade a motion to approve the closure of the Zavalla WIC office, The second
motion by Dr King, All were in favor, and no one opposed.

Ttem L. Adjourn.
The meeting adjourned at 7:50 am.



WELINA COUNTY &, Cl

A

HEALTH DISTRICT

May 19, 2025

Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LLP
517 South First Street
Lufkin, TX 75901

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit(s) of the financial statements of Angelina
County and Cities Health District, which comprise the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the discretely presented component unit, the major fund as of August 31, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position for the year then ended, and the disclosures (collectively, the “financial
statements™), for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether the [inancial statements are presented fairly,

in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“U.S. GAAP™).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material, [tems are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information
that, in light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying
on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or
misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors,

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of May 19, 2025, the following representations m

ade
lo you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated October
9, 2024, including our responsibility for the preparalion and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with U.S. GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the
applicable criteria.

2) The financial statements referred 1o above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and include
all properly classified funds and other financial information of the primary government and all component
units required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity,

3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are fiee from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

3) The methods, significant assumptions, and data used in making accounting estimates and their related

disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, measurement, or disclosure that is reasonable ip
accordance with U.S. GAAP,

6) Related party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related parties have been
appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.




HEALTH DISTRICT

v o zozs o oy ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES

Page 2 of 8

7) Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
financial statements or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

8) We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been (or will be)
posted to the District’s general ledger.

9)  The effects of all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

10) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the District is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

Information Provided

I'1) We have provided you with:

a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records (including information obtained from outside
of the general and subsidiary ledgers), documentation, and other matters and all audit or relevant
monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c) Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence,

d) Minutes of the meetings of the District Board or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared.

12) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

13) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

14) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the District and involves:
o Management,

o Employees who have significant roles in internal contral, or
o Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

15) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the District’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

16) We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with provisions of

laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste or abuse, whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

17) We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

503 Hill Street * Lufkin, TX 75904 « 936-632-1139



Todd, Hamaker & Johnsan, LL
May 19, 2025
Page 3 of 8

HEALTH DISTRICT

ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES

18) We have disclosed to you the names of the District’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions, including any side agreements.

Government—specific

19) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

20) We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy identified and suspected fraud or noncompliance
with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that you have reported to us.

21) We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

22) We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the
audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

23) We have identified to you any investigations or legal proceedings that have been initiated with respect to
the period under audit.

24) We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as our
planned corrective actions, for the report.

25) The District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of

assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net
position.

26) We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant

agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

27) We have appropriately disclosed all information for conduit debt obligations in accordance with GASRS
No. 91.

28) We have identified and disclosed to you all instances of identified and suspected fraud and noncompliance

with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements that we believe have a material effect
on the financial statements.

29) There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including those
pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant agreements,
tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the
financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

30) As part of your audit, you assisted with preparation of the depreciation schedule, financial statements and
disclosures, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards. We acknowledge our responsibility as it
relates to those nonaudit services, including that we assume all management responsibilities; oversee the
services by designating an individual, preferably within senior management, who possesses suitable skill,

503 Hill Street * Lufkin, TX 75904 « 936-632-1139 7



Todd. Hamaker & lohnson, LLP#
May 19, 2025
Page 4 of 8

ANGELINA COLINTY & CITIES

HEALTH DISTRICT

knowledge, or experience; evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and accept
responsibility for the results of the services. We have reviewed, approved, and accepted responsibility for

the depreciation schedule, financial statements and disclosures, and schedule of expenditures of federal
awards.

31) The District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such assets
nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

32) The District has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on
the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

33) The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests in

legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose all other
joint ventures and other related organizations.

34) The financial statements include all fiduciary activities required by GASBS No. 84, as amended.

35) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities, in accordance with GASB Statement
No. 34, as amended, and GASBS No. 84

36) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are

identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly important
to financial statement users.

37) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted), and components

of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned) are properly classified
and, if applicable, approved.

38) Investments, derivative instruments, and land and other real estate held by endowments are properly
valued.

39) Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

40) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of
activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

41) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues, general
revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent fund principal.

42) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported.
43) Special and extraordinary items are appropriately classified and reported.

44y Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly disclosed.

45) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated or amortized.

503 Hill Street » Luflkin, TX 75904 * 936-632-1139 8



Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LI
May 19, 2025
Page 5 of 8

HEALTH DISTRICT

ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES

46) The government meets the GASB-established requirements for accounting for eligible infrastructure assets
using the modified approach.

47) We have appropriately disclosed the District’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position is available and have determined that nel position is properly recognized under the policy.

48) We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than

one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for
financial reporting purposes.

49) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RS] is
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methads of measurement and presentation
have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant
assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

50) We have not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASBS) No. 102 Certain Risk Disclosures, No. 103 Financial Reporting
Model Improvements, and No. 104 Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets as discussed in the Notes to the
Financial Statements. The District is therefore unable to disclose the impact that adopting GASBS No. 102

through 104 will have on its financial position and the results of its operations when the Statements are
adopted,

51) With respect to federal award programs:

a) We are responsible for understanding and complying with and have complied with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform
Administrative: Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements Jor Federal Aweards

(Uniform Guidance), including requirements relating to preparation of the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.

b) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
(SEFA) and related notes in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and we
believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance. The methods of measurement or presentation of the SEFA have not changed
from those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the SEFA.

c) If the SEFA is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited

financial statements readily available to the intended users of the SEFA no later than the date we
issue the SEFA and the auditor’s report thereon,

d) We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities
subject fo the Uniform Guidance compliance audit, and have included in the SEFA, expenditures
made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in the form of federal
awards, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated

503 Hill Street « Lufkin, TX 75904 + 936-632-1139 9



May 19, 2025

Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LLP# » S A ANGEUNA COU NTY & CHI ES

Page 6 of 8

€)

g

i)

k)

m)

HEALTH DISTRICT

surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
apprapriations, and other direct assistance.

We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards
related to each of our federal programs and have identified and disclosed to you the requirements
of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that are considered
to have a direct and material effect on each major program.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained,
effective internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable
assurance that we are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes,
regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that could have a material effect on

our federal programs. We believe the internal control system is adequate and is functioning as
intended.

We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other

correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relevant to federal programs and
related activities.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a
major program.

We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements (except for
noncompliance disclosed to you), including when applicable, those set forth in the OAB
Compliance Supplement, relating to federal awards and confirm that there were no amounts

questioned and no known noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements of
federal awards.

We have disclosed any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements,

including communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to
the date of the auditor’s report.

We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the
objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in
OMB'*s Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E) and OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles
for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, if applicable.

We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying
interpretations.

10

503 Hill Sireet * Lufkin, TX 75904 < 936-632-1139



Jamalar & g ’_,"" G e \ P 17
Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LLP J A /11 ] ]

May 19, 2023
Page 70l 8

n)

0)

5)

)

v)

W)

IGELINA COUNTY 8. CITIES

HEALTH DISTRICT

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct and

material compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial
reports and claims for advances and reimbursements.

We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance during
the reporting period.

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent (o the period covered by the auditor’s report.

No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any carrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, subsequent to
the period covered by the auditor’s report.

Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by
the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, as
applicable.

We have monitored subrecipients, as necessary, to determine that they have expended subawards
in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the lerms and conditions of the subaward and
have met the other pass-through entity requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

We have issued management decisions for audit findings that relate to federal awards made to
subrecipients and such management decisions have been issued within six months of acceptance
of the audit report by the Federal Audit Clearinghouse. Additionally, we have followed-up
ensuring that the subrecipient has taken timely and appropriate action on all deficiencies detected

through audits, on-site reviews, and other means that pertain to the federal award provided to the
subrecipient.

We have considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any necessary adjustments
to our books and records.

We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit findings
to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance, and we have provided
you with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions.

503 Hill Street * Lufkin, TX 7590477 * 936-632-1139 1



Todd. Hamaker & Johnson. LLP
May 19, 2025
Page ol 8

ANGELINA COUNTY & CITIES

T

HEALTH DISTRI

y) We are responsible for and have (or will) ensured the reporting package does nol contain
protected personally identifiable information,

z) We are responsible for and have (or will) accuralely prepared the auditee section of the Data
Collection Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

an) We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the compliance audit and
have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance,

bb) We have disclosed to you all contracts or other agreements with service organizations, if

applicable, and we have disclosed to you all communications from the service organizations
relating to noncompliance at the service organizations,

S
/. L [ )
k . {/6/(‘—\‘ ) Lo | oL L(
11/ ,M,VU“ \_f - W :
Kristina Childress, Administrator Kindrell Tucker, MD, Medical Director

503 Hill Street » Lufkin, TX 7

5904 » 936-632-1139 5



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES
HEALTH DISTRICT

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND COMPLIANCE REPORTS

AUGTUST 31, 2024

13



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

14



PAGE NO.
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Prineipal Officials and Board 0f DITECIOIS 1vuwvmimrrrieimsssrmsstssssirins osesssssessessemerssssessesseersessenserensnens 3

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors’ REPOrt..ouermcememnrunre: crmnarininnnn 3=

Management’s Discussion and Analysis ~ unaudited .. v e §=11
Basic Finaneial Staiemend(s
Government-wide Financial Statements

Statement of Net Position

................................................................................................ 14
Statement 0f ACHVIHES vivurerirmiriinmion enssesssssiosissiessesesseresseeressssesrssstoestsemsessssesesas e 15
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental Tunds...........vriuricsseeseeeesrssssemsessssmsessssssrosssssnsenin 17

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmentsl Funds
to the Statement of Net POSHION 1.vvvrvemonisnsnemmmssmseersmesssersssssessssessimsmonenens. 18

Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance — Goveramental FUNGS. ..., cierarrronresissssssmsssisess oo sons, 19

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance ~ (lovernmental Funds
10 the Statement of ACHVIHES ... iisisisecsseererseressreraesssesessessessseen.. e 20

Notes to the Financlal Statements

Requived Supplementary Information - wnaudited

Schedule of Revenyes, Bxpenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance - Budget and Actual — Goneral FUG ..o e esessstesssssomsssessesesmsesees e, 36

Notes to the Required Supplenentary Information ............cowsesssesceesmnmssonsssessssesseen 37

COMPLIANCE SECTION

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Maftters Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Governmental AUHIRG SIINAAFAS c..ovvccvrissirenreensrisisissoessccoressssss oo sesstisosssstsssoseeen o 39.40

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major
Program and on Intemal Control over Cotpliance Required

by the Unifotm GUIGANCE. ...uuirussecissssonmssmmsnrsssiensserss s esssesssessessost s sessesssanssesseen 41-43
Schedule of Expenditures of Fadral AWALAS vvu.u.ecivuonsovrcsssnesensssssssenssemmsssessmmesssossessssseees, 44-46
Notes to the Schodule of Expenditures of Feteral AWALAS ... .eveeeesceeorsseemrorstsessssessestinessoen 47

15



COMPLIANCE SECTION - continued
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Section Y — Summarty of Auditors’ Results

........................................

Sectjon 11 ~ Financial Statements Andit Findings

-----------------------------

Section III -- Major Federal Award Programs Audit Findings
and Questioned COBIS .

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

nnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnn

---------------------------------------------

PAGE NO.

16



PRINCIPAL OFFCIALS

Dr. Kindrell Tacket....couvrreerninn. et Hers e e Med1cal Ditector

Kristina Childress....oerenn

Lindsey Christian ..o M Financial Director

BOARD OF DIRF.CTORS

M. Je886 MOOY v iiricsii st ssssssmermsnssssssstossenssesssens e e e LIEEGHOT

M. Ricky CONIET 1ovsvrcnssscrsrississsecsssmmmesssmmsssnsessmssmsassssisssssmsessesssssississassrsss st ssssssstaseesseresssssssnnnss IHEEGLOT

Dr, Jerry JORNSOM vuvcvvnersisensenaisinmonsenmmnnine

b e e b s e e s st brons s oo LILTOGEOL

Mayor Trey WilkerSon......courmsereerninseasmnns rre b s e s, DIPEGTOT

IME, Petes FOMDSOM. e vieersinersnmsissrsseriessasitarsrsesemsetersmenressessssesessesssseesemsensssssssssseseeses, betrerer v aaoas v LHTECEOT

Dt Emily Todd-Parker wvimummiimmmemnmmimmosomsoen P s DITECTOT

D, Christing Graves v .

.
e . b e b g e s s sens s 1enns LITBGTOT

Dr. Karina Urquia ... s OR— T P e DITECTOE

Ms. Brittamy HANES ..o recerecrrcsssrnssarsnnnsesnenees e ————— v N wsvrsmn e LTEOEOR

Mayor ToAd RACKS ..vevmeunmmssssiiiinscssensesssssssssisssesmsesermserssressesssses S weeren DYirECEOY

D K18 KNG voississnsissiivsisnssisimeens s esssssissssssesesssnnsssstassserssessans N wisonn Ditector

Mayor Richard BIunk ... niimmmsmsmsesssssessssn o s v s snes e DITECHOE

17

T I UL b Y oeon T et b e et e senatsanas s e dmindstrator



FINANCIAL SECTION

18



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Angelina County and Cities Health District
Lufkin, Texas

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component urit and the major fund of Angelina County and Cities Health District (Distriof) as
of and for the year ended August 31, 2024, and the related notes to the fnancial statements, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
tespective financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component unit, and
the major fund, as of August 31, 2024, and the tespective changes in financial position thereof for the

year then. ended in accordance with aceounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,

Bavis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America.  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of fie Financial Statements section of our report. We are tequired to bo
independent of Angeling County and Cities Health District, and to meet our other ethical respongibilities,
in accordance with the rclevant ethical requitements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 2 basis for our audit opinions,

Responsibilities of Management foy the Financia! Stotements

Mavagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to tho preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or
BLLOT,

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, conisidered in the aggregate, thet raise substantial doubt about Angelina Comnty and Cities Hoalth

Disirict’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements
are available to be {ssued, '

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qut objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole age
free from matetial misstateroent, whether due to fraud ot error, and to issue an anditor’s report that
inclades our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accopted auditing

19



standards and Government Auditing Standards will elways detect a material misstatement when it exists.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, risrepresentations, or the
override of internal control, Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial lkelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by & reasonable user based on,
the financial siatements,

In performing an eundit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards, we:

« Exercise professiona] judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit,

¢ ldentify and assess the risks of material migstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and desigh and perform eudit procedures responsive to those risks. Such

procedures include examining, on a fest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procecures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of Angelina County and Citics Health District’s internal control,
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wsed and the reasomeblencss of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

o  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Angeling County and Cities Health District’s ability to continue
as a going concern for a reasonable period of time,

We are tequired to commiunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned soope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain infemal control-related
matters that we identified during the andit,

Reguived Supplementgry Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require thet the management’s
disoussion and analysis and budgetaty comparison information on pages 8-11 and 36-37, respectively, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is requized by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considats it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplerentary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Undied States
of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of preparing the juformation
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquities, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audif of the basic financial statements,
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the Hmited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an epinion or provide any assurance.

20



Supplementary nformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financisl statements, The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, as tequired by Title 2 U8, Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and dudit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements, Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly fo the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statsments, The {nformation hag been subjected to the
auditing prooedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including compating and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
end other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financlal statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is Taitly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whale,

Other Informuation

Management is tesponsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory section, but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditors®

report thereon. Our epinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the othet information, and we
do not express an opinion ot any form of assurance theteon,

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists botween the ofher information and the
bagic financial sfatements, or the other information otherwise appears to be malerially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to deseribe it in our report.

Other Reporting Requived by Government Auditing Standards

In accotdance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 19, 2025
on pages 39-40, on our consideration of the Disirict’s internal control over financial repotting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agteements and
other matters, The putpose of that report is to describe the seope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over financisl reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an andit
performed in accordance with Government duditing Standards in considering the District’s itternal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

nr;"d—fia) HWW C&" :ﬁfﬂmﬁrmﬁj LMLP

Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LLP
Lufkin, Texas

May 19, 2025

21



As management of Angelina County and Citiss Health Distriot (the “District™), we offer readets of (he
flnancial stafements this nerative overview and analysis of the District’s financial performance for the fiseal
year ended August 31, 2024. We enoourzge readers fo consider the information presented here and the
Distriof’s financial statements, which follow this section,

FINANCIAL FAGHLIGHTS

+  The Distriet’s overall assets exceeded ifs total Habilities by $2,289,624 (net position) at August 31,
2024, Of this amount, $1,598,190 (unrestricted net posidor) is aveilable to meet the ongoing
obligations to the District.

*  The overall assets of the District increased by $19,684 during the fiscal yea, dverall cash, cash
equivalents, and certificates of deposit decreased by $128,487; overall receivables increaged by
$119,127; and net capital assets decrensed by $41,771.

*  The District had no long-term debt outstanding at year end and no debt was incurred during the year,

*  Excluding capitel grant revenmes, overall tevenues increased by $385,612, Overall expenses inoreased
by $565,718 from the prior year.

*  Overall revenues exceeded expenses (or an Increase in net position) by $105,119,
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve s an jatroduction to the Distriet’s basic financial statements.
The Distriet's basic financial stalements are comprised of three components: (1) government-wide financial
statoments, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements,

Government-wide Kinancial Statements. The government-wide finamelal statements (pages 14 to 15) are
designed to provide readexs with a broad overview of the District’s finances, in a manner similar to private-
sector business, These statemonts provide both short-ternt and long-term information about the District,

These sfatements include Angelina County and Cities Health District Endowment Ttust (“Bndowrment Trust"),
a component unit of the District, The entity, althongh legally separate from the District, is included in the
financial statements because the board of the Endowment ‘Trust consists of members of fhe District’s board,

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets and libilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net postiion. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
setve as a usefi] indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating,

The siatement of activities presents infotmation showing how the Disirict’s net position changed duting the
fiscal year. Revenues ate recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred,
regardless of the titning of velated cash Fows,

Fund Kinancial Statements. The governmental fund financial statements (pages 17 to 20) focus on sear-term
inflows and autflows of spendable vesources, as well as on halances of spendable resources available at the
end of the fiseal year, Revenues are recognized whon they are both medsurable and available, Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is ineurred, except for general abligation bond principal and
interest, which are reported as expenditures in the year due,

22



Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additionsl Information that is essentinl to & full

undetstanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financinl statements can be found on pages 21 to 34 of this report.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Over time, net position may serve as a nsefil indicator of & governhment’s financial position. At Augost 31,
2024, the District's assets exceeded ifs labilities by $2,289,624,

A portion of the District's net position, $691,434, reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g, land, buildings,
improverments other than buildings, equipment, and infrastructurs), less any relased debt used to acquire those
assets that remains outstanding, The District uses these capifal assets to provide services to individuals we
setve; consequently, these assets are not available for Arture spending, -

None of the District’s net position was restricted at August 31, 2024, The temaining balance of its net
position, or $1,598,190, is varestricted in naturs.

At the end of the current fiscal yoar, the District reporls a positive balance ir: all categories of net position.

The District's Net Position

Govemmental Activilies
2004 2023
Current and other agsots $ 2,621,293 $ 2,550,838
Capital assets 691,434 733,205
Total agsots 3,312,727 3,263,043
Long-term Habilities 27,188 37,635
Other llabilities 993,915 1,070,903
Total Habilities 1,023,103 1,108,538
Net position

Invested in caplial agsets, :
net of related debt 691,434 733,206
Unires tricted 1,598,190 1,451,299
Total net position $ 2230624 § 2,184,505

23



The following table provides a summary of the District’s operations for the year ended August 31, 2024,
Gevernmental activities increased In the District’s net position by $105,119,

Change in Net Position
Governinenial Activities
2024 2023
Programrevenues
Charges for services § 404757 8 5414158
Operating grants/contributions 6,459,484 5,975,026
Capital gramts/contributions - -
General revenucs
County and oities 86,395 86,395
Building lease 294,003 294,003
Management agreement - 73,333
Unrestricted invesiment earmings 41,998 20,856
Gain (loss) on sale of assets - -
Other mizcellaneous 902 986
Totalevenues 7,377,629 6,002,017
FExpenses
Administrafion 416,004 445,059
Women, Infanty and Children 652,926 656,037
Primary Health Care 3,937,797 3,566,205
Preventatlve Care 817,872 790,911
Public Health Prepatedness 408,096 289,478
Ensritonmental 164,622 125,730
Conmunity Health Initiatives 494,224 496,571
Intorest 286 1,206
Indirect 379,923 333,505
Total expenses 7,272,510 6,706,792
Increase (decrease) in
net position 105,119 285,225
Net position - beginning of year 2,184,505 1,899,280
Net position - end of vear $ 2289624 § 2,184,505

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
The District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance refated requirements,

Governmental Yunds (pages 17 to 20). As mentioned earlier, governmental funds provide information
regarding spendable tesources.  Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing and cash
tequirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a usefisl measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of August 31, 2024, the District’s governmental funds reported a total find balance of $1,598,786, The
fund balatce is comprised of $7,465 in prepaid items and $409,625 in inventory. The remainiog balance of

$1,181,696 is unassigned. During the year, the fund balance in the governimental fand inereased by $147,057
a5 a result of opetatlons,

24



General Fund Budget. A comparison of the genetal fund budget and actun] results is presenied as requirad
supplementary information on page 36. Total revenmes were higher than budgeied amounts by $140,565,
Expenditures were lower than budgeted amounts by $6,492.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District’s investment in capital assets as of August 31, 2024, totaled $691,434 (net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization),  This investment includes land and other capital assets such as buildings,
improvements, and ecquipment.

Capital Assets (Not of Depreciation)

CGovernimental A ctivities
2024 2023
Buildings $ 623000 $ 651,000
Fumiture and equipment 12,258 18,453
Vehicles 10,666 16,761
Leaschold improvements 45,510 46,991
Total capital assets, net $ 691434 § 733205

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

As of August 31, 2024, the District had no ontstanding long-term debt and no debt was incured during the
year,

ECONOMIC TACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

For fisoal year 2025, the District approved a budget of §7,366,600 with no antivipated deficit, The futyre
ecanomic concetns of the Health District include poteniial federal and stato legislative action that could impact
grant rovenues and other rovermes, local grant funds, and potential facility maintenance cost,

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designad to provide a general overview of Angelina County and Cities Health District’s
finances for all those with an interest in the District’s finances, Questions about fis Teport or requests for
additional information should be addressed to the Administrator, Angelina County and Cities Healih District,
© 503 Hill Street, Lutkin, Texas 75904,

25



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26



GOVERNMENT-WIDE: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES BEALTH DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Primary care, net of allowance

AUGUST 31,2024

for contractual adjustments of $6,179

Grants

County and cities

Other
Prepald items
Inventory
Noncuirent assels

Capital assefs, net of acenmulated depreciation
Right of use assets, net of accurmilated amortization

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Agocounts payable
Accrued expensos
Uneatned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities
Opsrating lenses
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET POSITION

Tivested in capital assets, et of related deht

Restricted donations
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

Sec accompanying noes to the finacial statements,

<14 -

Primary Government
Governmental Component
Aotivities Totel . Unit
$ 843,794 § 843,794 § 86318
64,495 64,495 “
472,215 472,215 -
796,457 796,457 -
650 650 “
7,465 7,465 -
409,625 409,625 -
691,434 691,434 -
26,592 26,592 -
3312727 3,312,727 86,318
82,713 82,713 -
47,776 47,776 -
865,426 865,426 -
10,765 10,765 -
16,423 16,423 e
1,023,103 1,023,103 -
——
691434 691,434 -
- - 11,408
1,598,190 1,598,190 74,910
$ 2280624 § 2280624 § 86,318
28



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEAT.TH DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024

Net {Expenses) Revermies
Fxperses Progren Revennes and Chenges in Net Postfion
Expenses after
Allocation of Charges Operating Capital Primary Govemment
Adminigtration, for Grenis and Grants and Govermmental Component
Fuoetions/Programs Expensss Allocation and Tndirect Services Copfributions _ Coniribimions Activities Total Ut
Pomary goverrcnent B
Governmenta] activities
Administation 3 416062 3 {356,946} 3 15,118 3 - £ 19,118 % - 3 - % - %
"Women, Infants and Children 652,926 120,029 772,955 - TOR.977 - {65,978) {63,578) -
Primary Heslth Care 3,937,797 361,935 4295732 214,128 4,113,449 - 7,545 27,845 -
Preventative Care 817,872 99,150 917,032 69,778 710308 - {134,945} (136.945) -
Public Heaith Preparedness 408,096 74,798 482,804 - 405437 - (T1A457) {77457} -
Enviropmertal 164,622 30,264 194886 210851 - - 15,965 15,965 -
Commumity Health Fnitiatives 494,724 90,583 524,907 - 502,194 - £82,713) (82,713 -
Taterest 985 - 925 - - - (986) (26 -
Indirect 379,923 (379,923) - - - - - - -
Total governmental activities 7,272,510 - 7,272,510 494,757 6459484 - {318,269 (318,259 -
Total primary government b 7272510 % - $ 7,272,510 § 494757 § 6459484 § - {318.269) {318,265 -
Componsat Tinit 5 80 8 - $ % 3 - 3 2000 § - , 2,920
- General revenuas:
Connty avd citles 86,395 86,395 -
Building lease 294,003 254,003 -
Tnrestristed invesinont ezmings 41998 41,998 751
Other 992 952 -
Totzl geners! revenues 423,588 473338 751
Change in net posttion 185,115 105,119 4,671
Net pesition « begimming 2184505 2,184,505 81,647
Net position - ending 2289624 § 27089624 § £6,318
See accompanying notes to the financial staterments. 29

~15-



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Primary care, net of aflowance
for contragtual adjustments of $6,179
Cirants

County and cities
Other

Prepaid items
Inventory

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Uneathed revenns

Total lHabilities

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable
Prepaid items
Inventory
Unassigned

Total fund balance .

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
AUGUST 31, 2024

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Total
General Governmental
Pund o Funds
% 843,794 § 843,794
64,495 64,495
472,215 472,215
796,457 796,457
650 650
7465 7,465
409,635 409,625
$ 2594701 § 2594701
$ 82,713 § 82,713
47,776 47,716
865,426 865,426
905,915 095,915
7465 7465
409,625 409,625
1,181,656 1,181,696
1,598,786 1,598,786

§ 2,594,701

$ 2504701

See accompanying notes to the financial staternents,

-17-

31



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS T'O THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024

Amounts seported for governmental activities in the govethment-wids statement
of net position are different because:

Total fund balances - governmenta! funds balance sheet _ $ 1,598,786
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources,
and therefors, are not reported in the governmental funds. 691,434
Right of use assets used in governmental activities are not financial resoutces,
and therefore, are not repotted in the governmental funds. 26,592
Long-term labilities, including operating leasos, are not due and payable in the
curtent period and therefore,are not reported in the governmenta) fuads, (27,188)

Net position of governinental activiiies 2280624

See accompanying notes to the financial statements, 17
-18 -



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENULS, BXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024

Total
General Governmental
Fund Funds
REVENUES
County and cities $ 86,395 % 86,395
Btate of Texas contracts 2,524,112 2,524,112
Environmental 210,851 210,851
Prevention and other 373,601 373,601
Primary care 1,770,235 1,770,235
Dronated pharmaceuticals 2,076,435 2,076,435
Building lcase 294,003 294,003
Investruent income 41,908 41,598
Total revenuss 1,377,630 7,377,630
EXPENDITURES

Personnel 3,303,737 3,363,757
Contraciual 499,613 499,613
Utilities and maintenance 232,399 252,399
Office 137494 137,494
Medical 2,517,130 2,517,130
Travel 38,052 38,952
Futniture and equipment 27,843 27,843
Rental/lease _ 12,870 12,870
Building vent 294,003 294,003
QOther 36,512 86,512
Total expenditures 7,230,573 7,230,573

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 147,057 147,057
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,451,729 1,451,729
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $§ 1,508786 § 1,598,786

Ses accompanying nates to the financial statemenis, 23
-19- -




ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVIENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ~
GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the govettiment-wide statesnent of
activities are different becanse:

Net change in fund balance - governmenta! fund $ 147,057
Governmental fands report capital outlays as expenditires, 14,000

The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental sctivities is
not reported in the governmental fiunds, (35,771)

The amortization of right of use assets uséd in governmental activities is

not reported in the govsrnmental funds, (10,614)

Amount attributed to oparating lease principal is an expenditute in the povernmental
funds, but is not reported as an expense in the statement of activitics, 10,447
Chanpe in net position of governmental activities $ 105,119
%

Seo accompatying notes to the financial staterments, 24
20 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Introduetion

The financial statements of Angelina County and Cities Health District (“ACCHD” or “the District”) have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally aceepted in the United States of America,
(“GAAP™) es applied fo government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASBE”) is
the accepted standard-setting body for ostablishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles, The more significant accounting and rep orting policies used by the District are discussed below.

Reporting Entity

Angelina County and Cifies Health District is 2 political subdivision of the State of Texas, The District is
an independent special purpose governmental entity and is governed by & Board of Directors.

Bagic operations of the District are financed by county and city contributions, grants, primary care,
environmental, personal health, investment carnings and other revenues, The District receives federal, state
and local grant funds to finance specific programs, There were no special gifts for long~range projects and
plans in the current petiod

The financial reporting entity should consist of the primary government and all component units for which
it is financially accountable and other organizations for which the nafure and significance of their
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would eause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete, The District is not incloded in any other governmental
“reporting entity”, and fhere is one component uait inchided within the reporting entity,

Digcretely Presented Component Unit. Angelina County and Cities Health District Endowraent Trust
(“Endowment Trust”) was formed on October 30, 2008 and s legally separate, tax-exempt 501(c)(3)
organizaton. The board of the Endowment Trust consists of members of the District's board. The
Endowment Trust recoives charitable contributions from the community and grantors to be used to provide
funds for the use and benefit of the District in accordance with the donor’s vestrictions, if any, The
Endowment Trost may distribute funds solely to assist the District in providing “essential public health
services”, Because the Endowment Trust raises and holds resources For the benefit of the District, the
Endowment Trust is considered 2 component unit of the District as required by GASB Statement No, 39
and is discretely presented in the District’s government-wids financial staternents, Separate financial
staternenis of the Endowment Trust are not issued.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financiel statements include the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. These statements report information on all of the activities of tho District as a whole,

Governmental activities include programs normally supported by program revenues and intergovernmental
revenues,

The stetement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment ate offset by program revenues. Direct expenses ato those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include: 1) chatges to customers who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants
and conttibutions that ave restricted to meoting the operational or capital requirements of a parficular
function or segment, Other revente sources not properly included with program reverues are reported ag
general revenues,

36



Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmenta] fumds
are reported as separate columns in the fimd financial statements,

New Accounting Proncnncements

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Frror Corvections — an Amendment to (GASE 62
(“GASB 1007), is intended to enhance accounting and financial reporting for accounting changes and error
cortections, The requirements of this statement are effoctive for finencial statements for perfods beginning
after June 15, 2023, Implementation of GASB 100 had no effect on the District’s finaneial disclosures.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences (“GASB 101™), is intended to update the recognition
and measurement guidance for compensated absences, The requireinents of this statement are effective for
financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2023. The effects of implementing GASB
101 on the Districi's financial disclosures have not been evalmated by management,

GASB Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures (“GASB 1027, is infended to improve financial
reporting and disclosure of certain concentrations or consitaints and related events that have oceurred or
have begun to ocour. The requirements of this statement ate effeotive for financial statements for periods
begihning after June 15, 2024. The effects of implementing GASB 102 on the District’s financial
disclosures have not been evaluated by management,

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporiing Model Tmprovements (“GASB 103”), is intended to
improve key components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision meking and assessing a government’s accountability, The
requirements of this statement are effective for financial staiements for periods begianing after Fune 15,
2025. The effects of implementing GASB 103 on the District’s financial disclosures have not been
evaluated by management,

GASB Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital Assels (“GASB 104”), updates required disclosure
information relating to capital assets. The requitements of this statement are effective for finaneia]
statemends for perfods beginning after June 15, 2025, The effecis of implementing GASE 104 on the
District's finanicial disolosures have not been evaluated by management.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounfing, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide staterents are reported using the economic resources measurement Jocus and the
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues ate recordsd when earned and oxpenses arerecorded when a liability
is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, Grants and donations are recognized as revenye
in the fiscal year in which grantor eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental find {inancial statements are reported using the eurrent financial resources medsurement
Jocus and the modified acorual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measutable end available, Available means oollectible within the cutrent period or soon enough thersafter
to pay current liabilities. The District considers tevenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days of the end of the fiscal yoar. Expenditurey are generally recorded when the related liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting, Debt service expenditures, both principal and interest, are recosded only when
paymont is due,

Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as tovenue when the qualifying expenditures have been inourred
and all other grant requirements have been met, Revenues from county and citics, grants, primary care,
personal health, management agreement, donated facilities and investrment earnings are susceptible to

37



accrual, All other revenues are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by
the District,

The District has the following major governmental fund:

The General fumd is the government's ptimary operating fund, Tt acconnts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another find,

Assets, Linbhilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Net Positton/Fund Balance

Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on band, demand deposits, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible fo known amounts of cash and so near matitity that they
present insignificant risk of changes in value beeanss of changes in interest rates. Cash equivalents include
investments with original maturities of three months or less and are stated at fajr value.

ACCIID is required by the Public Funds Collateral Act (Government Code, chapter 2257) to maintain

security for all deposits of funds that exceed coverage provided by the Federal Deposit Ingurance
Corporation (“FDIC"),

The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code, chapter 2256) (the “Act”) tequires the government
te adopt, implement, aud publicize a written investment policy which primarily emphasizes safety of
principal and liquidity, and addresses investment diversification, yield, and matarity, Additionally, the
policy must address the quality and capability of investment management and include the types of
investments in which the entity may invest its funds, as well as the maximnm allowable stated maturity of
any individual investment, the maximum dollar-weighted average maturity allowed based on the stated
matwity date for the partfolio of pooled fund groups, and bid requirements for certificates of deposit,

The Act anthorizes invest in any of the following financial instruments:
* U8, Treasury securities which have a liquid market; direct obligatious of the State of Texas, and

other obligations that are guaranteed by the State of Texas or United States of America;

* obligations of states, agencles, counties, and other political subdivisions of any state having been

rated as investment quality by a nafionally recognized nvestment rating firm and having received
a rating of not less than “A” or ils equivalent;

+ fully msured or collateralized cerlificates of deposit at commercial banks;

*  ropurchase agreements collateralized by U.S, Treasury or U.8. Government Agency securities in
accordance with a master repurchase agreement;

*  jeint pools of political subdivisions in the State of Texas which invest in instruments and foliow
practices allowed by current law (the pool must be continuously rated no lower than “AAAY or
“AAA-m" by al least one nationally recognized rating service).

38



Fair Value of Financial Instruuments

The Distriot, including component units, categorizes its fair value messurements within the fair valye
hierarchy established by generally accopted accounting principles. GASI Statement No. 72, Fair Valye
Mensurement and Application provides a framework for measuring fair value, Tt established a three-lovel
hietarchy that describes the inpuis used to measure assets and labilities,

Those three lavels are as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets und Habilities in active markets
that the government can access at the measurerent date,

Level 2 inputs arc inputs (other than quoted prices within Level 1) that are observable for an asset
or liability, either directly or inditectly

Level 3 inputs are unobsetvable inputs for an asset or liability.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest ptiority to Level 3 inputs.
I a price for an identical asset or liability is not observeble, a government should measure Gir value using
another valuation technique that maximizes the use of relevant obgervable inputs and minimizes the uge of
unobsorvable inputs. If the fair valus of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one
level of the hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority lovel that is
significant fo the entite measurement.

Receivables

The District provides an allowance for uncollectible aceounts in an amount equal to patient fees estimated

to be uncollectible based on aging of patient fees receivable at year end. There was not a balance in the
allowance for uncallectible accounts at August 31, 2024.

An dllowance for contractual adjustments is eecorded for the difference in amonnts billed and expected

third-party reimbursements. The balance in the allowance for conitactual adjustiments was $6,179 at August
31, 2024,

Prepaid Items

Cextain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accouwnting petiods and are recorded ag
prepaid expenses in both goveinment-wide and. fund financial statements.

Iiventory

The District records purchases of medical supplies as expenditures, utilizing the purchase method of
accounting for inventory.

Donated pharmaceutioals ate velued at cost or average wholesale price (lower of cost or market) using the
first in, first out (“FIFO”) method.

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets include uny real property or personal property that has a value or cost of $5,000 or more and
useful life of no less than one year, Such assets are recorded at cost in the government-wide financial
statements. Donated capital assefs are recorded at sstimated fair market value at the date of donation,

39



Costs incutred for normel maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assst or materially
extend assets lives are expensed,

Capitel assets are depreciated using the straight-line method, When capital assets are disposed, the cost
and applicable accumulaied depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain
or loss is recorded in operations,

The sstimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 9 1o 25 years
Furiture and equipment 3 1o 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years

Defexrred Ouiflow and Inflows of Resources

Deferred Outflows of Resources. Tnaddition to assets, the statements of financial position (the government-
wide Statement of Net Position and governmental funds balance sheet) will sometimes repoxt a separaic
section for deferred outflows of resources. This soparate finencial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents & consumption of net position and/or ford balance that applies to one or more future
petiods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The
District has ne items that qualify for reporting in this categoty,

Deferred Inflows of Resources. In addition to linbilities, the statement of net position and balance sheet
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a fiture period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The District has no items that qualify for
repotting in this category.

Compensated Absences

The district accraes its liability for accumulated unpaid benefits. Employees are entitled to paid vacation
(annual leave) and sick leave days dopending on job classitication, length of service and other factors, Any
unused sick leave will not be paid upon termination of employment, and thorefore is not accrued, Hach
employee is allowed to carey forty hours annual leave over from one fiscal year to the next,

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabiliies in governmental activities, Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bands using the strai ghi-line msthod, Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount, Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amaortized over the term of the related debt, Tssuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures in the year incutred. Long-term obligations
consisted solely of operating lease linbilitics at August 31, 2024,

In fund financial statements, governmental fund typos recoghize bond premioms and discounts, as well ag
bond issuance costs, during the cutrent period, Premiums received on debt issuance are reported ag other
financing sources while discounis on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld frora the actual debt proceeds received, are teported as debt service expenditures,

40



Net Position and Fond Balance

I the government-wide financial statements, the diffsrence betwoen the District’s total assets and tota)
liabilities represents net positlon, Net position is displayed in three components ag follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of velated debt consists of capital assets, net of nccumulated depreciation
and roduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes or other debt attributable to the acquisition,
. construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricied net position results when constraints placed on net position use are sither externally impossd
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation,

Unrestricted net position consists of net position not meeting the definition of the two preceding

categories. Unrestricted net position often has constrainis on resources imposed by management which
can be removed or modified,

In the governmental fond financial statements, fimd balances are classified as ollows:

Nonspendable — amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form {such

ag inventories and prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact,

Restricted — amounts that can be spent only for specific puxposes due to constraints imposed on
resoutces either (a) externally by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors,

or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or ¢nabling legislation.

Committed — amourts that can only be used for Specific purposes pursuant to constiaints imposed
by formal resolutions or ordinances of the Board of Directors — the government’s highest lovel of
decision meking authority, Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through
resolutions approved by the Board of Directors, '

Assigned ~ amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that
ate intended to be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned — all other spendable amounts,

Sometimos the District will find ouflays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted
resources (ihe total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance), Tn order to calculate the amounts
to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial
statements, a flow assuption must be made about the order in which the resources have been applied. 1t
fs the District’s policy ta consider restricted fund balance to have Been depleted before uging any of the
companents of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of untestricted fund balence can

be used for the same purpose, commitied fund balance js depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance,
Unassigned fund balance is applied last,

Estivnates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting prineiplos generally accepted in the
United States of Ametica roquires management to make estimates and agsumptions that affect certain
reported amounts of assets and Habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

41



financial stetements and the reported amounts of revenno and expetises during the reporting period,
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

STEWARDSHIE, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Budgetary Information

The Financial Director annvally submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year ending August 31.
After a public heating on the proposed budget, the official budget is approved by the Board of Diractors in
August preceding the applicable fiscal year, Generally, District policy provides for the following;

* Budgei amendments are generally made prior to the expenditure of funds for positions or activities
not included ju the original budget.

*  Transfers to a line ifem which were not in the oxiginal budget must be approved,

The budget as presentsd in the financial statements reflects the fnal budget as amended by the Board of
Directors. Unexpended appropriations Lapse at the end of the fiscal yeat.

Deficit Fund Balance

Generally socepted accounting principles requive disclosure of individual funds that have deficit fund
balances at ycar end. There were no deficit fund balances at August 31, 2024,

{Remainder of this page left blank intentionally.)

42



DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
ASSETS

Deposits and Investments

Interest Rate Risk, Intetest rate risk i the risk thet the fair value of the investment will be adversely affected
by changes in interest rates, The District’s investment policy does not linit investment maturities on money
martlet mutual fiunds,

Custodial Credit Risk - Depogsits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the District’s deposits may not be returned. The District’s policy and the Public Funds Collateral Act

require funds on deposit at depository banks to be collaieralized to the extent tat the deposits exceed FDIC
covetage.

Primary Government, As of August 31, 2024, the Distriet’s deposits held by depository banks totaled
$879,435. All deposits were fully collateralized by securities pledged by the depository banks with a
total value of $1,463,215, in addition to FDIC coverage,

Component Unit. As of Avgust 31, 2024, the Endowment Trust’s cash held by depository banks totaled
$86,318. All deposits were fully insured by FDIC coverage.

Invesiments. At August 31, 2024, neither the Disirict nor the Bndowment Trust had investments,

Pharmacey Inventory and Donated Pharmaceuticals

The Disirict operates an in-house pharmacy. During the year ended August 31, 2024, the District
tecognized $2,076,435 in revenue for donated pharmaceuticals from various drug companies. These
donations have been recognized in other revenues on the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances. Purchases of pharmaceuticals were made as nseded through a supplier. At August 31,
2024, the District had $409,625 in pharmacy inventory, $337,695 of which were donated pharmaceuticals,

Receivables

Grants receivable are for reimbursement of expenditures and fees for serviee provided under various granis,
All amounts are expected to be collected within the year. A summary of these receivables follows:

Receivables: __Amount
Woman, Infants and Children ~ Administration $ 116,066
Womaaz, Infants and Children — Peer Counseling 26,005
Woman, Infants and Children — Registered Dietician 19,381
Woman, Infants and Children — Lactation Consultant " 8,917
Woman, Infants and Children — Special Projects 20,524
TB 3,233
HIV 41,020
CSHCN 9,272
Immunization 9,448
Jmmunization — COVID 2 7,963
Maternal and Child Health Services — Title V 2,933
Public IHealth Emergency Preparedness 28,566
Ebola EP1 3,471

43



Receivables - continted
STD/TB Federal
PHWE
Health Equity
PHIG
BCCS
BRLHO
PHC State
CCHB
THRIVE

Total grants receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles of 30)

County and cities receivables are for the remainin
regular county and oities contributions to the Dis

year. A summary of these receivablos follows:

Angelina County — primary health care contribution

County and cities

Total (net of allewance for uncollectibles of $0)

Caplial Assets

Amount
3,147
10,955
4,557
27871
5,617
4,118
71,231
18,993
28,927

§ 472215

$ 793,612
— 2845
$_ 796457

Changes in capital agsets for the vear ended Angust 31, 2024 are as follows:

Primary Government
Governmental activitiey

Capital assots, being depreciated
Buildings
Futnitore and equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements
Totzal being depreciated
Loss accurnulated depreciation:
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Vehicles
Leasehold improvements

Total acownulated depreciation
Total being depreciated, net
Total capital assels, net

& Angelina County - primaty health care contribution and
trict, All amounts are expected to be collected within one

Balance Balance
08/31/2023 Additions __Disposals _08/31/2024
$ 706,795 § - % - § 706,795
135,207 - - 135,207
30,475 - - 30,475
229313 14,000 - 243,313
1,101,790 14,000 - 1115790
(55,795) (28,000) - (3,795)
(116,754) (6,195) - {122,949)
(13,714 (6,095) - (19,809)
(183.322) (154813 - {197,303)
(368,585 (85,711) - (424.,356)
733,205 {41.771) - 691,434
hy 733,205 % (41,711 $ . 5 591434

14



Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the government-wide statement of activities as follows:

Administeation 3 1,245
Woman, Infants, and Children _ 8,424
Primary Health Care 25,403
Preventative Care 6,960
Public Health Preparedness 5,250
Bnyvironmental 2,124
Commupity Health Initiatives 6,365

Totals s 55771

Right of Use Assets

A summary of changes in assets under operating leases for the year ended August 31, 2024 follows:

Primary Government

Governmental activities
Balance Balance
08/31/2023 Additions Disposals 08/31/2024
Right of use assets $ 52473 § - % - % 52,473
Accumulated amortization (15.267) (10,614) - {25.881)
Total right of use assets, net S 37206 § (10,614) § - § 26,592
Amortization expense was charged to finctions of the government-wide siatoment of petivities ag Tollows:
Administration $ 237
Woman, Infants, and Children 1,604
Primary Health Cars 4,834
Proventative Care 1,325
Public Health Preparedness 999
Environmental 404
Commnnity Health Initiatives 1,211
Totals 3 10,614
EIABILITIES
Acerued Expenses

At August 31, 2024, acerued expenses were composed of the following:

Acerued
_ Expenses
Amnual [eave § 48,904
Employee insurance and other (1,547
Accrued payroll taxes 419
Totals § 47776

45



Unearned Revenue

At Augnst 31, 2024, unearned revenue consisted of the following;

Unearned
Revenve .
County and Cities $ 15,790
Endowment Tiuat 6,558
Episcopal Health Foundation 54,302
Local grants 178,250
Other 610,626
Totals i 865426

Operating Leases
Operating lease activity for the year ended August 31, 2024 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
08/31/23 Additions Reductions 08/31/24 One Year
Governmenial activilies

Operating leases $ 37635 § - 8 (10447 § 27188 8 10,765

Copiers, InJarwary, 2022, the City entered into a six year operating lease for the use of six copiets requiring
monthly payments of $1,095 through Jatwary 2027, In January, 2023, the City entored info a six year
operating lease for the use of one copier requiting monthly payments of $122 through J anuary 2028. The
City has indicated no intention to purchase the assets at the end of the lease terms. The liability has been
caloulated using an imputed interest rate of 3.00%. Iniorest expense of 1,206 was charged to the
government-wide statement of activities, During the year, the City paid $14,828 under the coniracts,
including $3,395 for insurance and other services.

The antmual requirernents for the operating lease follows:

Governmentsl Activities

Year Ending august 31, Principal interest
2025 ‘ b 10,965 § 668
2026 11,093 341
2027 4,124 66
2028 606 5
Totals 5 27,188 % 1,080
RENTAL EXPINSES

During the year, the District leased office space, and storage facilities under lease agreements. The office
space leases generally provide for the payment of real estate taxes and other related expenses by the District,

Rental expense under these agreements totaled $11,100 for office space and $5,170 for storage facilities for
the year ended August 31, 2024,

46



HEALTH CARE COVERAGE

During the year end August 31, 2024, employees of the District were covered by health, life, accidenta]
death and dismemberment, vision and dental insurance plans, Bmployees paid $70 per month and the
District paid the remainder for healil, life, accidental death and dismemberment, vision and denta]
insurance premivms to the appropriate administeator and employees, at their option, authorized payroll
withholdings to pay contributions or premiums for other insusance coverage such as additional Tife
insurance, lower health insurance deductibles or dependent coverage, The District has health and dental
coverage through Blue Cross Blue Shield, vision coverage through Vision Service Protection and life
insurance through MetLife. Premiums for other insurance were puid to licensed insurers,

DONATED FACILITIES

The Disirict has entered Into a lease agresment for facilitios with CIHI St Luke’s Health Memorial
(Memorial). The annual rent is $1 for the lease. Sincs the anaual rent is below prevailing market rates,

building rent totaling $294,003 has been recognized in the financial statements a5 the fair rental value of
the donated facilitizs,

DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

On September 1, 2008, the District established the Augelina County and Cities Health District 4575 Plan
(4570 Plan) which is a defined contribution pension plan, This 457b Plan is administered by Southside
Bank. The plan was established as a Governmental Fligible 457b Plan and can be amended at any time.
Employees can contribute a petcentage of their salary up to the apnual maximum elective deferral and the
District metches 4% of the employees’ compensation. The employees contributed $85,851 and the District's
matohing contribution was $39,117 for the year ended Angust 31, 2024,

CONTINGENCIES AND UNCERTAINTIES

"The District has received several federal and state grant awards. These awards are subjoct to financial and
compliance audits by the gramtors or their representatives and regulatory authorities. The purpose of the
audits is to ensure compliance with conditions relating to the granting of funds and other reimbwrgoment
regulations, The District’s management believes that any liability for relmbursement which may arise as
the tesult of these audits would not be material to the financial position of the District,

OTHER INFORMATION

Risk Managemeut

"The Distriet is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts ; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assels;
medical and malpractice claims; errors and omissions, injuries to employees; natural disasters; and otheys,
The District provides commetcial insurance coverage for these risks. Management believes such coverage
is gufficient to preclude any significant nninsured logses, '

The District purchases workers® compensation insutance coverage from the Deep East Toxas Self Insurance
Fund (the “Tund™), a public entity risk pool, which is gelf-sustaining through member contributions. The
Fund reinsures fo statutory limits throngh commercial companies for claims in excess of $1,000,000. The
¥und contracts with independent actuaries to determine the adequacy of reserves and fully funds those
teserves. The District pays a monthly premium to the Fund for its workers® conpensation ingurance
coverage. By participating in the pool, the District is not responsible for its own paid claims; consequently,

41



tisks associated with workers” compensation are passed to the pool. The membets of the Fund have no
known premium Habilities for workers’ compensation covetage in excess of their confracted annual
premiums. However, if the assets of the Fund were o be exhausted, members would be Hable for their
portion of the Fund’s liabilities, This would indicate that members would be contingently liable for the
portion of the liability applicable to their political entity, Independent auditors conduct a financia] andit at

the close of each plan year and, as of the most recent audit, the Fund has adequate assets to cover more than
100% of all liabilities.

The District maintaing insurance coverage covering property and sutomobile Ligbility risks of loss with
Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool (the “Pool™,  self-insurance pool created by its
roembets to provide various coverages to participating members, Excess insurance is purchased to provide
additional financial stability to the pool, Catastrophic losses that exceed the Pool’s self-insured retention
are secured by excess insurance purchased from domestic A-rated companies, The Pool’s yetention is
$10,000,000 per occurrence in excess of member deductibles for property and automobile physical damage

coverage and up to $10,000,00 for liability coverage. Setiled claims did not exceed the coverage for each
of the past three fiscal years.

Subsequent Evenés

Management has evaluated subsequent svents through May 19, 2025, the date when the financial stetements
were available to be issued,

43



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

19



ANGELINA COUNTY AND CITIES HEALTH DISTRICT
SCHEDULL OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2024

Onriginal Fiual Variances
Adopted Appropriated Actual Favorable
____Budget Budgst Amecunts (Unfavorable!
REVENUES
County and cittes § 143992 § 143,992 § 86,395 § (57,597)
Staie of Texas contracty 2,801,924 3,040,826 2,524,112 (516,714)
Environmental 212,200 212,200 210,851 (1,249
Prevention and other 442,800 442,800 373,601 (69,199)
Primary health care 1,763,244 1,763,244 1,770,235 6,991
Donated pharmaceuticals 1,3¢0,000 1,300,000 2,076,435 776,435
Building lense 294,003 294,003 254,003 -
Tnvestment incoma 40,000 40,000 41,598 1998
Total tevenues 6,998,163 7,237,065 73717,630 140,565
EXPENDITURES
Parsonnel 3,665,503 3,868,266 3,363,757 504,509
Contractual 555,298 572,089 489,613 72476
Utilities and mainfenance 310,500 311,143 252,399 58,744
Office 168,059 169,934 137,494 32,440
Medical 1,825,000 1,828,786 2,517,130 (688,349
Travel 38,400 51,468 38,952 12,516
Furniture and equipment - - 27,843 (27,343
Renial/lease ‘ 16,800 17,030 12,870 4,160
Building rent 294,003 294,003 254,003 -
Other 124,600 124,346 86,512 37,834
Total expenditures 6,998,163 7,237,065 7,230,573 6,452
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES '
OVER BXPENDITURES . - 147,057 147,057
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR, 1,451,729 1,451,729 1,451,729 -
FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR § 1,451,729 % 1,451,729 § 1598786 § 147,057

See Indspendent Anditots' Report and Notes to the Required Supplementary Information, 50
36 -



BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY PROCESS

The Financial Dirgctor annually submits & proposed operating budget for the fiscal year ending August 31,
After a public hearing on the proposed budget, the official budget is approved by the Boerd of Directors in
August preceding the applicable fiscal year, Generally, District policy provides for the following;

*  Budget amendments are generally made prior fo the expenditure of funds for positions or activities not
included in the original budget,

*  Transfers to a line item which were not in the original budget must be approved,

The budget as presented in the financial statements reflects the final budget as amended by the Board of
Directors. Unexpended appropriations lapse at the ond of the fiscal VA,

51



COMPLIANCE SECTION

52



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Angelina County and Cities Fealth District
Ludldn, Texas

We have audited, in accordance with the anditing standards generally accepied in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the discretely presented component unit, and the major fund of Angelina County and Citjes
Henlth District (the “District™), as of and for the year ended August 31, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Angelina County and Cities Health District’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated May 19, 2025,

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control aver financial reporting (“internal conirol”) to detetmine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control, Accordingly, we
do not express en opinion on the affectiveness of the District’s inferaal control,

A deficiency in internal conmtrol exists when the design or operation of a control dees not allow
management or smployess, in the normal course of performing their assigned funetions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is 5 reasonable possibility that & material
misstafoment of the entity’s finaucial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a
timely basis, A significant deficlency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
goverhance,

Our consideration of internal conirel was for the limited purpogs deseribed in the first patagraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant duficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may
exist that were not identificd. Given these limitations, during owr audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intetnal control that we consider to be material wenaknesses. However, materia)
weaknesses may oxist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance sbout whether Angelina County and Cities Health District’s
financial statements are fice frorn material misstatement, we performed fests of its compliance with
cettain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could

53



heve a ditect and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our andit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noucompliance ot other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this roport is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectivencss of fhe entity’s intexnal
confrol or on complience, This report is an integral part of an sudit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal contre] and compliance,
Accordingly, this comnunication is not suitable for any other purpose,

‘”mu,) Woopmakea, & ﬂ»%hw) LLP

Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LY.P
Lufkin, Texas

May 19, 2025

54



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE, FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED
BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Direotors
Angeting County and Cities Health Distriot
Lufkin, Texas

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Muojor Federal Program

We have audite¢ Angelina County and Cities Health District’s (the “District”) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on cach of the District's major federal programs for the year ended
Angust 31, 2024, The District’s major federal programs are identified in the suminary of anditors’ results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, Angelina County and Cities Health District complied, in all matorial respects, with the
types of compliarce requitements refeired to above that conld have a direct and material effoct on each of
its major federal programs for the yoar ended August 31, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generelly accepted in the
United Statos of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmens Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Tifle 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cosi Principles, and
Audit Regusiremenis for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidatce). Our responsibilities under those stapdards
and the Unifors Guidance are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of ont roport,

We are required to be independent of Angelina County and Cities Healih District and fo mest cur other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with televant ethical requirements telating to our audit. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinjon
on compliance for each major foderal propram. Our audit does not provide a legal defermination of
Angelina County and Cities Health District’s compliance with the compliance requirements refetred to
above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is rosponsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control aver compliance with the tequirements of

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts of grant agreetnents applicable to Angelina
County and Cities Health District’s fodetal programs,

55



Auditors’ Responsibifities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements teferred to above oceurred, whether due to frand or arror, and express an
opinion on Angelina County and Cities Health District’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is » high level of assurance but is not absalute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an,
audit conducted in accordence with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncampliance when it exists, The rigk
of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control, Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
matorial if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggiegate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance abeu Angelina County and Cities
Health District’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing anh audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

*  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticlsm throughout the audit,

» Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fiaud or etror, and design
tind perform audit procedures xesponsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence rogarding Angelina County and Cilies Health District’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
congidered necessary in the circumstancas,

* Obtain an undesstanding of Angslina County and Cities Health District’s internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
ciroumstances and to test and teport on intetnal control over compliance in accordanco with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expessing en opinion on the effectivencss of
Angelina County and Cities Health District’s internal confrol over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and matezial weakuesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Repoxt ou Internat Control over Compliance

A deficiency in Internal conirol over compliance exists when the design or operation of & control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
fumctions, to prevent, or defect and corrsct, noncompliance with a type of corpliance requirement of a
federal program on & timely basis. A material weakness tn internal control over complionce is a
deficiency, or a combipation of deficiencies, in interaal control over compliance, such that there is g
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a faderal
progrem will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
comphiance with a type of compliance requirement of u foderal program that is less severo then 3 tmateria]

weakness in internal control over complisnce, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance,

b6



Qur consideration of infernal contrel over compliance was for the Iimited purpose described in the
Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to Identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance. Given these litnitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in infernal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknessss,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal contro] ovey
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our andit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of infernal
confrol over compliance, Accordingly, no such opinion Is expressed,

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on fhe requirements of the
Uniform Guidance, Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose,

Tedd, Pommoken & Thvnson , LLP

Todd, Hamaker & Johnson, LLP
Lufkin, Texas

May 19, 2025

57



11.8. Department of Agriculinre
Passed through Texas Health ard Hurman Services Commission

Special Supplemental Nutrifien Program
for Women, Infants, and Children

Total for CFDA 10.557
Total U.S. Department of Agriculiure:

1.8, Depariment of Health and Human Services
Pagsed through Texas Depariment of State Health Services
Public Health Bmergency Preparedness

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
Total for CFDA 93.059

Project Grants and Cooperative Agrecments
for Tuberculosis Control Programs

Total for CFDA 93.114

Immmization Cooperative Agreements

COVID-19 Immunization Cooperative Agreements
Total for CFIIA 93.268

COVID-19 Public Health Bmergency Response:

Cooperative Agreement for Emergency Response:
Public Health Crisis Response

Total for CFDA 93.354

10.557

93.065
93.069

93.116

93.268
93.268

93354

HHS000800500061 S 708,977 % -
768977 -
708977 -

HHS001311260001 109,370
HESG01432500001 28 566 -
137.936 -
HHS001096400003 13.072 -
13.672 -
HOS6013313000062 148,192 -
HESG61619500001 58,712 -
206,504 -
HHS0GT1074400001 217.433 -
217433 -

58



11.8. Department of Health and Hhunan Services - continued

Passed through Texas Deparfment of State Health Services

Activities to Support State, Tribal, Local and
‘Territorial Health Departruent Response
to Public Healik or Healtheare Crises

Total for CFDA 93391

FPassed through Texas Health and Human Services Commission
Medicaid Chuster: Medical Assistance Program.
Total for CFDA 93.778
Cancer Prevention and Control Programs for State,
Territorial and Tribal QOrganizations
Total for CFDA 93.898

Passed through Texas Department of State Health Services
HIV Prevention Activities Health Deparimnent Based
TFotal for CEDA 63.940
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention Collaboration
with Academia to Strengthen Public Health
" Total for CFDA §3.967
Preventive Health and Bealth Services Block Grant

Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant
Total for CFDA 93.991

93.391

93.778

93.898

53.940

93.967

$3.991
93.991

HHSG01037600004

HES000537906028

HIIS001341700601

HHS0009371000601

HHS061308500001

HHS001324500004
HHS001186500001

45,180

45,180

56,295

56,295

61,721

61,721

99.719

89.719

208,102

208.102

11,197
165.006

176.167

59



.8, Departrnent of Health and Fhoman Services - continued

Passed through Texas Department of State Health Services
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States
Passed through Texas Health and Human Services Commission
Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant to the States
Total for CFDA 93.994

Total Expenditnres of Federal Awards:

53994  HHS00070440G0001

93.994

HESG00136506010

119,761

23,965 -
143,726 -

2 2075172 $ -

60



NOTX 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policles

Expenditures reported on the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards {(“Schedule™)
are reported on the accrual basis of eccounting and accordingly, all significant receivables, payables, and
other Habilitics are jncluded. Where applicable, such expenditures are recognized following the cost
principles contained in Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminisirative
Regquirements, Cost Frinciples, and dudit Requirements for Federal Awards ( “Uniform Guidance”),
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbutsement, Negative

amounts shown on the SEFA, if any, tepresen: adjustments or credits made in the normal course of
business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior yeats.

NOTE 2 — Indirect Cost Rate

Angelina County and Cities Health District {the “District”) has elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect
cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance,

NOTE 3 — Basis of Presentation

General. The Schedule includes the federal grant activity of the District under programs of the federa]
government for the year ended August 31, 2024, The infotmation in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Because the Schedule presents only a
selected portion of the operations of the District, it i not intended to and does not present the financial
position, changes in net position, or cash flows of the District. Expenditures included in the Schedule are
reported exclusive of non-federal matching funds,

Relationship to Federal Financial Reports. Far some awatds, amounts included in federal finaneial
reports filed by the District with grantor agencies may differ due to accruals that are included in
subsequent reports filed with the agencies and varying program year ends.

ROTIE 4 - Other

Pass-through entity identifying numbers are pregented where available.

61



Section I - Sommary of Anditors® Results

Financial Smtemen.l‘s

Type of auditors’ report issued:

¢ Malerial weaknoss(es) identified?

»  Significant deficiency(les) identified that aro
not considered to be material weakness(es)?

Non-compliance material to financial
statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

¢ Material weakness(es) identified?

»  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
1ot considered to be material weakness(cs)?

Type efauditors’ report igsued on compliance for

major programs;

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with § 516(a) of
the Uniform Guidance?

Identification of major programs;

Federal Assivtance
Listing Number(s)

ynmadified

yes Y o

yes v _ note reported

yes v___no

yes ¥ 1o

yes v none reported

Unmodified

yes Y __no

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10,5587

Special Supplemental Nutrition Program
for Women, Infants, and Children

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B federal programs:

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee?

& 750,000

v yes no

62



Section II — Financial Statements Audit Findings

None,

63



Section I - Major Federal Award Programs Audit Findings and Questioned Costs

None,

64




Financial Statemenis Audit Findings

None.

Major Federal Award Programs Audit Findings

None,

65



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 800

Administrator Chalrman of the Board

Subject: Paystub Access
Lffective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: May 26, 2004

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Heulth District will ensure all employees have access to their paystubs, ¥fan
employee needs a copy of their paystub, the employee will notify the Finance Manager or
designee in the finance department via email or verbally, The Finance Manager or designee will
ensure the paystub is available after 11:00 am on the scheduled payday, Anyone picking up a
paystub for another employee must submit writien authorization to administration from that
employee before the paystub is released to the designee, In the event that direct deposit is not
availablo due to systetn failure, employees will be dispersed a paycheck. Each employee will be
rosponsible for collecting their puychecks from their department leaders or from Administeation.

66



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 801

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Independent Contract Labor
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: July 9, 2403

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) ensures all individuals whose services are
accepted by contractual agreemsnt complete an Independent Contractor Agteement and Backup
Withholding Form before the first wotking day. No checks will be issued to independent
contractoss unless such Independent Contractor Agresment and Backup Withholding Form have
been completed, Independent contractors must comply with afl health requirements that apply to
employees, volunteers, temporaty workers, and independent contractors, including but not
limited to Policy #202. Independent contractors are not eligible for Health District benefits or
any other benafits for which employees of the ACCHD may be eligible. Independent contractors
will be sent 4 1099 form listing all amounts paid by ACCHD over $600 or the statutory limit,
For all amounts that are over $600, reference the ACCHD s policy tifled “Purchasing Systems.”

67



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District ' Policy Number 802

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Suspension Without Pay
Effective Date; May 21, 2025

Snpersedes: June 20, 1994

Policy:
Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) establishes guidelines and procedures for
- the applicability of employee suspension without pay.

Reason Forx Suspengion:

An employee may be suspended without pay for a period not to exceed thirty calendar days.
Employges may be suspended without pay for a first or subsequent violation of any policy, rule,
or regulation. Employees may also be suspended without pay for any illegal activities; serious
misconduct, or serious infractions, '

»

Officials Authorized fo Suspend;
Any suspension without pay must be anthorized by the Administrator or the Medical Ditector.,

Procedures for Employces Who Have and Have Not Completed the Probationary Period:
Any employee can be suspended without pay, independent of the probationary period.
Bmployees who are subject to suspension must be informed in writing of the suspension
reason(s). Theso reasons should be consistent with the terms within the Employee Policy
Maougl, The written document should contain information such as:

1. Reason for suspension.

2. Effective date of suspension.

3. End date of suspension.

4. Information on how the employee can file a grievance to rebut the allegations.

Administrator Responsibility:

The Administrator applying the suspension without pay procedure must provide wiitten evidence
to support or justify the action of suspension without pay. '
Submission of Personnel Actions;

68



Personnel suspension actions will be submitted by the appointing authority, indicating the time
and date the suspension is in effect, 1o the Admindstrator. The section of the Personnel Action
designated for Type of Action must include the following:

L. Suspension Without Pay.

2. A copy of both lefters referencing this Policy title and numaber,

3. Verification that the completed documentation was forwazded to the appropriate

administrative personnel for document filing,
4. A separato Personnel Action desoribing the cessation of the suspension,

Respousibility of the Administrative Staff:

The Administrative Staff will be responsible for processing the personnel actions. A copy of the
completed appropriate documentation will be placed in the employee's personnel folder along
with a copy of the letier advising the employee of suspension. :

6%



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 803

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Classification of Enaployees
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: July 9, 2003

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (“ACCHD") groups employees based on categories,
These categories are listed as exernpt, non-exempt, regular full-time, part-time, and temporary,
All employees, regardless of classification, are required to document thefr hours worked in 2
timesheet.

Exempt Employee:

An exempt employee is defined as one who primarily engages in executive, administeative,
ot professional work in nature, as defined by the Fair Labor Standards Act, as emended.
This category is eligible for all ACCHD employee benefits. ( Refer to the Compensatory
Time policy for additional information.)

Nen-Fxempt Employee:

A non-exempt employee is defined as one who performs services and receives wages that
are subject to payroll law and aro eligible for all ACCHD employee benefiis. (Refer to the
policy on Compensatoty Time for additional information.)

Regular Foull-Time Employee:
A regular, filll-4ime employee is defined as a personnel member who is regularly scheduled to
work 36 hours per week and is eligible for all ACCHD employee benefits.

Pari-Time Employee: _
A pari-time employee is defined as a personnel member who is regularly scheduled to worlk

less than 36 hours per week and Is not eligible for ACCHD etnployee benofits except for
pro-rated annual and sick leave.

Temporary Employee:

A temporary employee is defined as a personnel member who works full-4ime or pari-time
for a specified period and is not eligible for ACCHD employse benefits.

70



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Mealth District Policy Number 804

Administratoy Chairman of the Board

Subject: Purchasing System
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Sopersedes: July 28, 2010

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) establishes a process for poxchasing
systems. All purchases must be properly approved. All supporting purchasing documentation
must be supplied to the purchasing clerk before ordeting. The purchase order should include
information regarding the purchase and include the program to which the expenditure is to be
charged. All purchase requisitions will be submitted to the program supervisor for preliminary

approval. The Administcator will approve all purchases, The desi gnee can approve the purchase
in the absence of the Administrator.

Procedure;

1.~ A purchase order number will be issued by the putchasing clerk for all approved
purchase requisitions, The purchase requisition and the purchase order will be retained
by the purchase clerk for a period of 3 years, All incoming purchases will be verified by
the purchasing cletk and matched with the corresponding purchase requisition and
purchase order,

2. The purchasing clerk is responsible for matching invojces with supporting purchase
docutmentation and giving the information to the finance department (o, if there is no
acting Financial Director, then fo the Administrator or Finaneial Manager) for payment,

3. A copy of the check and the supporting purchase documentation will be refurned to the
purchasing clerk for filing under the vendor’s name.

4. Allindividual items with an anticipated purchase price of $500 or more will require thres
vetifiable verbal or writien quotes.

5. All individual items that have an anticipated purchase price of $5,000 or more must be
approved by the Board of Health and will require competitive sealed bids, except for
individual jtems that have been approved for purchase by a grantor agency or
foundation.

6. All individual items or setvices that have an anticipated purchase price of $10,000 or
more must be approved by the Board of Health and are required to be purchased by the

1



competitive sealed bid process,

7. Grouping purchases of items or sexvices for a specific project or purpose (for example,
furnishing an exam room or building a network system) can be considered as an
individual item and subject to the purchasing policies above.

The individual who signs the delivery ticket is responsible for assuring accuracy and ensuring
porishable merchandise is refrigerated,

Disbursements made for routine activities such as utilities, telephone service, administrative
fees, insutance, payroll tazes, ete., will ot require a purchase requisition,

12



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 803 '

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Supporting Documentation for Disbursements
Lffoctive Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: Marxch 10, 2010

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) will maintain all supporting documentatio,
such as invoices, receiving reporis, approval forms, purchase orders, copies of checks, etc., for
each disbursement. These documents will be filed and will be available for retrieval for a period
of 3 years. The purchasing clerk will be responsible for maintaining and organizing the originat
documentation for all disbursemenits, See the policy titled Purchasing Systems for purchasing
procedures.

73




Angelina County & Persomnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 806

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Cash Receipts and Cash Control
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: March 10, 2010

Policy: _

Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) controls and maintains all cash receipts to protect the
entity from any migappropriation. Physical access (o cash receipts and cash receipt records is limited to
authotized personmel. All cash received shall be deposited promaptly in the ACCHD’s bank account,

Opening Mail Procedures:
1. Ateam member who reconciles the general ledger and bank aceounts shall epen the hank mail.
2. Alisting ofcash and/or checks received should be prepared by a team member who Is independent
of any bank reconoiliation/general ledger dutios.
The listing should include name, amount, invoice number, and date of cheok.
A copy will be magde of all checks received in the mail and attached to the cash receipt listing,
All checks will be properly endorsed upon receipt,
All cash and/or checks received in the mail will be deposited daily.

Sk W

Daily Operation Receipts Procedure:

1. All departments will use pre-numbered cash recoipts for each daily cash transaction and enter each
teceipt into a computer database,

2, All checks will be properly endorsed upon receipt,

3. Daily cash receipts and monies will be reconeiled to a printout, summarizing daily cash {ransactions
by authorized personnel,

4. All monjes will be given to Administration on a daily basis, in its intact and properly secured
format,

5. Deposits will be prepared daily by a team member who is independent of bank
reconciliation/general ledger duties,

14



6. Al daily printouts, receipts, and deposit slips will be given to the responsible team member in the
finance department,

7. The Finance Director, if there is a current or if not, then the Administrator and or Finance Manager,
or designee will review and enter the information into the General Ledger.

8. Day Sheet totals wil be compared with the daily cash deposited on a deily basis. Any ovetages or
shortages shall be reported to the Administeator,

Cash will not be used to pay expenses,

Employees are not allowed to cash personnel checks at the Angelina County & Cities Health District.

75



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 807

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Petty Cash
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: March 10, 2010

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) maintains a Petty Cash Fund to cover
incidental office expenses. The funds will be available to make necessary purchases when
issuing a check is impractical. A Petty Cash Agent will be assigned to maintein the fund
recotds and keep the fund propetly secured,

Procedures:

L, The Petly Cash Fund is to be used for expenses of under $75.00 and must have
administrative approval.

2, A cash receipt must be submitted before reimbursement is made,

3. Arecord will be maintained listing the purpose of the expenditure. If money is to
be given in advance of purchase, the person receiving the money will sign a
receipt before the money is digbursed.

4. A reconciliation of the fund will be comploted on a monthly basis by the Potty
Cash Agent and reviewed by the Finance Director, or if not, then the
Administrator and or Finance Manager or designee.

5. A peity cash report will be prepared on a monthly basis.

6. The monthly report will contain itemized transactions and will be submitted for
reimbursement to replenish the peity cash fund.

7. Any discrepancies will bo reported to the Administrator.

76



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procednre
Cities Health District Policy Number 808

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 54
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: February 22, 2012

Background: The Governmenial Accounting Standards Board (GASB) adopted Statement 54,
a new standard for governmental fund balance reporting and governmental fund type definitions,
which became effective in governmental fiscal years starting after Juge 15, 2010,

Policy: Angelina County & Cities Health District (“ACCHD®) elects to implement GASB 54
requirements and to apply such requirements to its financial statements beginning with. the
current fiscal year. The fund balance of the ACCHD measures the net financial resources
available to finance expenditures of future periods.

The ACCHD’s Unassigned General Fund Balance shatl be maintained to provide ACCHD with
sufficient working capital and a margin of safety to address Jocal and regional emergencies
without borrowing. The fund balance ACCHD may be committed for a specific purpose or
sonrce by formal action of the Board of Health. Amendments or modifications of the committed
fund balance must also be approved by a formal action of the Board of Eleal:h,

When it is appropriate for fund balance to be assigned, the Board of Health delegates the
authority to assign funds to ACCHD’s Administrator or Finance Director/Finance Manager

In circumstances where an expenditure is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are
available in multiple fund balance classifications, funds shall be expended in the following order:
restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned.

71



Angelina County & * Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Nwmber 809

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Travel Reimbursement
Tiffective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: November 1, 2023

Policy:

The Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) promotes education and enhances
training for employees by reimbursing travel expenses that are pre-approved and within
pre-cstablished guidelines. Bmployees will be reimbursed for travel expenses incurred on official
ACCIHD business. Travel expenses shall be defined as mileage, lodging, meals, car rental,
parking fees, airfare, and/or other travel costs.xelated to official business, which have been pre-
approved by the department supervisor and the Administrator,

Employee Responsibility:
1. Complete all travel forms within specific time limits.
2. Provide accurate information regarding travel.
3. Notify the supervisor and Finance Director, ot if not, then the Administrator and/or
Finance Manager ot designee when changes occut in travel plans,

Supervisor Responsibility:
1. Ensure all travel documents are aceurate and authentic,
2. lmmediately notify the Finance Director, or if not, then the Administrator and/or Finance

Manager or designee, in writing, if an employee with prearranged travel plans has been
terminated.

Failute to follow travel reimbutsement procedures may result in travel claim processing delays

and forfeiture of reimbursements, An employee who abuses the Travel Reimbursement Policy
and Procedure will be subject to disciplinary action.

78

o ———— i e 8



Travel Expendifure Reimbursement:

All of the expenses must be kept at a reasonable level, Original receipts must be obtained and
attached to the Travel Expense Voucher Form for reimbutsement. Credit card receipts ate not
acceptable, The Travel Expense Voucher Form must be submitted to the departmental supervisor
with original receipts five working days after the trip. Non-reimbursable travel cxpenses include
valet parking, gifts or mementos, aleohol, and gratuities,

1.

6.

Mileage:

a, Track actual mileage driven (odometer readings), multiplied by the current IRS
mileage reimbursement rate. Alternatively, mileage driven can be calculated fiom
an official Texas map with the City of Lufkin designated as the point of origin,

b. For rouiine in-county destinations, such as satellite clinics, supervisors may
establish a standard mileage rate in lieu of odometer readings.

¢. Mileage reimbursement within the City of Lufkin is limited to grant-approved
travol, the Environmental Program’s approved activities, and other operational
travel pre-approved by the Administrator,

d. A Personal Vehicle Mileage Log must be submitted to the department supervisor
five wotking days following out-of-county travel or five days following the end of
the month calendar for in-county travel.

Lodging:
8. The actual cost of the room is not fo exceed $200, excluding tax, per night,
except when the purpose of the trip requires lodging at a particular hotel or if the
hosting agency has secured special room rates at a particular hotel,

Meals:
b. Reimbursemeont for meals is not to exceed $15 per meal as determined by the
Meul Reimbursement Determination Form, and will not exceed $60 daily.
¢, Reimbutsement is excluded for seminars located within the City of Lufkin,

Airfare:
a. Provide receipts of the actual cost of airfare, including shuttle or taxi betwoen the
hotel and the airpott,
b, Alrfare is to be prepaid when possible.

Vehicle Rental:
a. Provide receipts of the actual cost of the vehiclo rental and the cost of rental
insurance, Use a compact car if available,
b. Insurance must be purchased with all car rentals.
Hotel Parking:
a. Provide receipts of hotel parking actual cost.

Travel Advance:

1. Anemployee may request a travel advance by submitting a Travel Advance Request
Form to the departmental supervisor two weeks prior to an approved trip.
2. The advance may not exceed 80% of the travel expenses when the expenses include

79



mileage, and up to 100% when the travel expenses do not include mileage.
3. Following the completion of the trip, the Travel Expense Voucher must be submitted
with otiginal reeeipts to the departmental supervisor five days after the trip,

80



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 811

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: ACCHD Jssues Credit Card
LEffective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: New Policy

Policy:

The Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCHD) will issue credit cards to employees
based on their job fanctions, for pre-approved purchases, and for business purposes. These
guidelines describe the appropriste and unaccepteble uses of the ACCID credit cards. Use of
ACCHD-issued credit cards guidelines st be followed, Compliance failure will result in the
discontinuation of credit cerd privileges and potentially disciplinaty action. The employee
designated as the credit card holder js responsible for ensuring the card’s safety and protection.
A reeeipt for each purchase must be obtained, attached to a completed purchase
requisition, and submitted to administration for processing within 5 working days after the
purchase.

Financial Responsibility and Liabilicy

Employees entrusted with such credit cards shatl follow these guidelines and only uso for
business, essential purposes. Employees must not use the credit card for any personal expenses,
If the employeo uses the credit card for unanthorized purchases, the cost of such purchase(s)
will be recovered in. full from the employee's next paycheck, Any balance remaining will be
deducted in full from subsequent paychecks until the wage advance is fully repaid., Such
deductions may tale the employee's pay below minimum wage for the pay period(s) in
question, Alternatively, the employes can inamediately reimbutse the ACCHD for total
expenses. If an employee uses the credit card for personal purposes, fhe employee will be in
violation. of this policy and is subject to corrective action, up to and including termination.

Agrcement for Wage Deductions Associated with Improper Use of Health District-Issued
Credit Cards

I , hereby certify that I understand and agroe to
abide by the ACCHD policy regarding use of issued credit cards. This policy has been

81



explained to me, and I have teceived a oopy of this policy. By signing this acknowledgement,
I agree to the following:

The credit card is provided exclusively for ACCHD expenditures sanctioned by ACCHD, Any
and all personal use of the card is prohibited. ACCHD may monitor and audit my credit eard
usage. [ have no expectations of privacy for eredit card transactions, 1 am personally
responsible for reimbursing ACCHD for any and all unauthorized charges, fees, late expenses,
and accrued interest on unauthorized charges,

In addition, I agree, consent, and authorize ACCHD to deduct from my wages and
compensation, in any one or more paychecks, the actual amount of unauthorized charges,
fees, and late expenses, as well as all interest accrued on sach unauthorized charges, until

the amount is repaid in full. I further agree that if T make any persona) transactions, [ am -

financially responsible for any such expenses, If such an amount would take my pay below
minimum wage for the workweek in question, the deductions will be in two or mere equal
increments that will not take my pay below minimim wage for any workweek involved,

Employee Signature Date

82



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 812

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Aecounts Payable/Cash Disbursement Procedures
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: July 28, 2010

Policy: The Angelina County & Cities Health District {ACCHD) implements procedures to
ensure the accountability of financiul records.

Accounts Payable/Cash Dishursement Procedures:

1. All original invoices and supporting documentation will be submitted to the Finance
Director, or if not, then the Administrator and/or Finance Manager or designee for review
and proper expenditure coding using cost centers relative to ACCHD programs snd
funding sources, .

2. Afler review and coding, the finance department will accurately enter invoices into the
accounts payable module of the accounting system, including the correct vendor code,
invoioe date, general description of goods or services, and the amount of the invoice, The
accounting system automatically gencrates an invoice due date in the systom,

3. After the invoices have been entered, an invoice master lst is generated for review and
proofing by the Administrator and/or designee. A manual calculation of the invoices to be
paid will be compared to the invoice master list to ensure the accuracy of the cash
disbursements.

4. Tho Administrator will review original invoices and supporting documentation and sign
the invoice master list designating approval for the disbursement of funds. Tf there are
any questions or concerns about the amounts, the Finance Director, or if not, then the
Finance Manager or designee should provide the necessary information before making
any disbursements.

5. The Adminigtrator provides the final approval for check preparation, after which the
Finance Director, or if not, then the Finance Manager or designee prepares the
disbursements within the accounting system and prints the checks.

83



All cesh disbursements are to be made by check unless the item is considered a petiy cagh
item.

a. All prepared cash disbursement checks require two signatures.

b. Authorized signatures include tho Administrator, Medical Director, and a

Board of Health member,

0. The Administrator can designate a backup check signer when necessary,
After checks have been signed, the Finance Director or, if not, then the Administrator or
Finance Manager will close out the cash disbursement process by posting the invoices
and checks to the general ledger.
Supporting reports, including the approved invoice master list, will be maintained for
each cash disbursement run.
A copy of the check will be attached to the original invoice and suppotting
documentation designating payment of the invoice.

Payroll Procedures;

1

ACCHD employees are paid semi-monthly with pay dates on the 15% and the last cay of
the month unless the pay date falls on a weekend or holiday,

The Finance Director, or, if not, then the Administrator and/or Fivance Manager, prepares
the somi-monthly payroll, incorporating approved salaries, employee deductions, and any
employee status changes,

Timesheets are to be prepared by all staff members and submnitted monthly.

Time should be entered daily into the electronic timesheet,

Directors and managers are responsible for reviewing the timesheets for aceuracy,
appropriateness, and the correct allocation of worked time between designated programs
and activities,

Dircotors and managers will immediately alext the Administrator or designee if an
employee has reached a leave without pay status.

All timesheets will inchude the signature of the employee and the director/manager,

A payroll proofing listing is generated by the Finance Director, or if not, then the Finance
Manager or designee, and submitted to the Administeator for approval before printing the
payroll checks.

The Administrator will review and sign the payroll proofing listing, designating approval
for the disbursement of funds.

10, If there are any questions or concerns about the amounts, the Finance Director, or if not

the Finance Manager should provide the necessary information befote ruoning any
digbursements. .

11. The Administrator provides the final approval for check preparation, after which the

Finance Director, or if not, then the Finance Manager prepates the payroll disbursements
within the accounting systern and prints the checks,

12, All payrol] disbursements are fo be mado by ditect deposit,

84



13, If checks are being disbursed, all prepared payroll checks will require two signatures.
Authorized signatures include the Administrator, Medical Director, and a Board of Health
meinber. The Administrator will designate a backup check signer when necessary.

14. Ablter checks have been signed, the Finance Director, or, if not, then the Administrator
and/cr Finance Managet will close out the payroll process by posting the payroll and
checks to the general ledger,

15. Supporting teports, including the approved payroll master list, will be maintained for
each payroll disbursement run.

Property/Fixed Asset Inventory and Records (Reference Material — Contractor’s Financial
Procedures Manual (CFPM)).

Angelina County & Cities Health District will maintain property records for all fixed agsets
purchased with local funding that meet the $5,000 per unit threshold and have a useful life of
more than one yeat., In addition, property records will:

1. Be maintained for ali propesty acquired with state grant funds according to the state’s
financial procedures and guidelines, '

2, Property records will include a desctiption of the property, serial number when available,
total acquisition cost, an acquisition date, and a disposition date.

3. A physical inventory of local property and property acquired with DSHS funds will be
conducted annually and reconciled to ACCHD property records.

4. Staff responsible for inventory control will seek written approval from ACCHD
management and from the state prior to the disposal or reassignment of inventory items.

5. State approvals will be maintained and available for review.

6. The ACCHD will securely purge all computers, media equipment, or copiers with digital
memorics and storage capacities of all confidential, sensitive, or personal information
prior to disposal, repurposing, or physically destroying inventory.

7. ACCHD will develop and maintain property control systems to safeguard against loss,
damage, or theft of property.

8, ACCHD will maintain an insurance policy to mitigate property loss, damage, or theft of
property.

Subcontractor Services and Fiscal Monitoring Plan
Angelina County & Cities Health District will monitor subcontractors, who provide suthorized
services, to ensure compliance with policies and basic DSHS requirements for services provided
with DSHS funds, including:

1. An annua! license review and verification.

Clinical record review biannually.

Eligibility and billing review.

Facility on-site roview.

Antual client satisfaction evaluation process.
Client Abuse Training.

T

8b



7, Fiscal monitoring of the subcontractor will ocour during the clinieal record teview
process to ensure invoicing for services correlates to services provided,

8. All subcontractor invoices for provided services will undezgo an administrative review
for accuracy and client eligibility to receive servicas,

9. ACCHD will maintain applicable programmatic and fiscal review records of
subcontractors.

Procurement Procedures:
The Angelina County & Cities Health District will seek to purchase goods and services that meet
the best value for money, efficiency, and effectiveness using sound business practices to enswre g
robust procurement process.
1. ACCHD staff will follow the process as outlined in the ACCHD Purchasing System
policy.
2. ACCHD will follow purchasing practices as established under federal or state purchasing
guidelines as outlined in grant-funded contracts,
3. Efforts will be made to utilize historically underutilized businesses in Texas.

g6



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Nuwmbor 203

Administrator Chairman of the Board
Subject: Child Abuse Sereening, Documenting and Reporting for ACCHD and WIC

Effective Date: May 24, 2025

Supersedes: October 30, 2024

Policy:

Article Il of the Genoral Appropriations Ast snd Texas Family Code Policy states local agencies
must comply with the provisions of state law related to reporting suspected child sexual abusge of
minors, including thoss minors who are preghant or postpartum (postpartum includes
breastfeeding women). The Angelina County & Cities Health District (“ACCHD®) adopts and complies
with the Texas Department of Family and Protective Services (“DEPS”) for Child Abuse Screening,
Documenting, and Reporting Policy for Contractors and Providers. This poliey apphies to all programs and
services provided within ACCHD, including the WIC program. The putpose of this policy is to protect
children from abuse and to comply with state and fedetal laws,

Any employee and professional (either permanent or temporary), or any volunteer who has cause
to believe that a child has been abused or that a child is a victim of a sexual offense, must
immediately report to the ACCHD Administration and report via the DFPS website.

For WIC: The 48-hour reporting requirements begin during a certification when “yes” ig
selected for any of the affirmative defense questions,

The employee and the ACCHD Administration will work together to teport to the loce] law
enforcement agency or to the DFPS. If an emergency situation arises, 911 will be called. The
employes reporting the information will comply and provide their name and ACCHD phone
number as required by law, Reporters’ names are confidential by law.
1. Child abuse includes the following acts or omissions by any persen:
a. Mental or emotional injury to a child that results in an observable and material
impairiment in the child’s growth, development, or psychological fonctioning,
b. Causing or permiiting the child to be in a situation in which the child sustains a
mental or emotional injury that results in an observable and materia) impairment
in the child's growth, development, or psychological functioning,
¢. Physical injury that results in substantial harm to the child or the genuine threat
of substantial harm from physical injury to the child, inchuding an injury that is
inconsistent with the history ot explanation given, and excluding an acoident.
d. Fuilure to make a reasonable effort to prevent an action by another person that
results in physical injury that results in substantial harm to the child,
Sexual conduct harmful to a child's mental, emotional, or physical welfare
Faifure to make a reasonable effort to prevent such harmfil sexual conduct.
Compelling or encouraging the child to engage in sexual conduct,
Causing, permitting, encouraging, engaging in, or allowing the photographing,
filming, or depicting of a child, if the person knew or should have known that

PR e

a7




1,

the resulting photograph, film, or depiction of the child is obscene or
pornographic,

Cansing, permitting, or encouraging a child to use controlled substances,

2. A report shall be made when a child under the age of 17:

.

oo

o

Has any indication of child abuse.

Has given birth to a child.

Has a positive pregnancy test or verbal declaration of pregnancy.

Has a pogitive diagnosis or was treated for STD acquired in a manner other
than through perinatal transmission or transfusion,

Is married but reports sexual contact with a person who is ot his or her spouse,
Is sexually active. (A minor seeking birth control does not trigger a report.)

g When the alleged or suspected abuse or noglect involves a person responsible

for the care, custody, or welfare of the child, a report must be made to DFPS,

3, ACCHD (Except WIC) does not recognize any affirmative defense; therefore, all ohjld
abuse under the age of 17 will be reported (inchuding the critical reporting of minors
under 14 years of age).

Procedure:

1. Administration and the staff reporting the abuse will fax a report using the DSHS
Child Abuge Reporting Form within the Texas Department of Family and Protective
Services Abuse Hotline Website hitps://www.txabusehotline.org/ within 48 hours of
the time that the abuse is first suspected. You must create an account on the hotline
web page. For help creating an account, call the DFPS Help Dosk at 877-642-4777.

2. An online report confirmation numbey will be system-~generated along with g report
identification mumbet, Staff should document in the medical record the report
identification number along with other relevant reporting information, or print the
submitied report and scan it into the patient’s EMR.

3. Ifthe situation is urgent and needs to be investigated within 24 hours, call 800-252-
5400 or call 911 or a local law enforcement agency.

4. State law requires that the following information be reported via the Texas Abuse
Hotline Website (listed below):

T pEee as o P

2l

Name, age, and address of the child.

Namze of person making report and contact information,

Brief description of the situation.

Current injuties, medical problems, or behaviaral problams.
Parents' names and names of siblings in the home (if applicable).
Explain how you know about this sttuation.

The person. involved,

The person you suspect is being bused.

The person you suspect is responsible for the abuse.

Others Jiving in the home, and anyone else who can provide information about the
inoident.

. Provide detailed information on the specific concerns and reasons you have for

reporting the incident,

Provide detailed information regarding domestic violence, drug and aloohol abuse,
living conditions, and other safety concerns (e.g., weapons, gang involvetent, or if
there are people, pets, or conditions that could be a dange),

5. Stafl will include reporting documentation in the individual client's EMR. and ake
it available for inspection by the investipating agency,

88



6. Information will be collected in the normal course of serving the client, and no
additional questions will be asked.

7. All staff of the ACCHD will be trained snnually on child abuse screening,
documentation, and reporting. New staff will be trained in this policy and its required
procedures during the initial employment orientation process,

WIC Only Procedures:
Purpose: To report suspected cases of child sexual ebuse to the DFPS and ensure compliance
with state law.

Aunthority: Article IT of the General Appropriations Act and Texas Family Code.

Policy: Local Agencies must comply with the provisions of state law related to reporting
suspected child sexual abuse of minors, including those minors whe ate pregnant or postpartum
(postpattum includes breastfeeding women).

Definitions: Professional — For WIC reporting putposes, all staff, including volunteers, who
interact with clients are considered professionals and must report within 48 hours. The 48 hours
reporting requitements begin during a certification when “yes” is selected for any of the
affirmative defense questions.

Xor Minors Who Are Pregnant or Postpartum

1. Local Agency (“LA") staff who interact with clients must report minors who are
pregnant. or postpartum (postpartum includes breastfeeding women). LA staff sre
considered professionals end must report within 48 hours (see definition).

2. Staff must enfer all required information (e.g,, Name, DOB, Participant Category,
Gender) wheti creating a record in the MIS. The MIS will automatically send an
underage report to DEPS for minors under 14 years of age. Reports will be sent in
rea] time once the record with the DOB and category is created and saved in the
system, Family Demographics questions one and two will be auto-populated with the
information entered when saving a record.

3. Tho MIS will prompt staff with an alert message to complete affirmative defense
questions for minors 14 to 17 years of age. The system will require staff to complete
the affirmative defense form before the certification can be completed,

a, If “Yes’ to either question 1 or 2 is selected, then a report will antomatically be
sent to DEPS when the record is saved, Staff MUST then ask the corresponding
follow-up question(s) 1a andfor 2a.
b. Questions 3 and 4 are optional to ask, but must be answered if known. If *Yes’
to either question 3 or 4 is selected, a report will automatically be emailed fo
DFPS when the record is saved.
¢. Question 5 provides additional details to investigators about the incident being
reported and must be answered if known. The details entered will be displayed in
the Family Demographics section of the report. The systom will require staff to
complete the affirmative defense questions before the certification can be
completed. Affirmative defense questions and the Child Sexual Abuse Reporting
Flowchart (for minors 14 to wnder 17 years of age are outlined in the Guidelines
section below.

For other forms of child abuse;

Report will be made via the Texas Abuse Hotline

89



Website: 11ttps://Www.txabusehotline.orgzLogin/Default.aspx

90



Angelina County & Pexsonnel Policy/Procedure

Cities Health District : Policy Number 401
Administrator Chairman of the Board
Subject: Remote Work

Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes:  August 28, 2024

Poliey:

Ange{ina County and Cities Health District (“ACCHD”) recognizes the importance of providing
flexible work options to employees while maintattring operational efficiency and accountability,
This policy provides guidelines, procedures, and expectations for employees who may work
remotely. It aims fo ensure that remote work arrangements ave conducted in a manner that aligns with
ACCIID's data and cybersecurity procedures.

Eligibility and Approval:
1. Remote work atrangements are at the discretion ofthe employee’s supervisor and must be
approved by the department hoad,
2. Employees must have a demonstrated record of meeting performance expectations and
adhering to ACCHD policies.
3. Notall positions orjob functions may be eligible forremote work, and eli gibility will be
determined on a case-by-~case basis,
Remote Work Agreement:
1. Enployees participating inxemote work nwst sigh a Remote Work Agreement outlining the
terms and conditions of the arrangement, :
2. The Remote Worl Agreement will specify the work schedule, communication expectations,
and other relevant details.
Work Environment:
1. Employees must create a safe, productive, and professional remote work environment,
2. Adequate and socure intetnet access is essential, and employees are responsible for any
associated costs.
Work Hours and Attendance:
1. Remote employees must adhere to their approved work schedule and be available during rogular
business hous unless altetnative arrangements have been approved.
2. Bmployees must accurately record their work hours and take breaks as ACCHD

7



policies require.

Commuuication and Accessibility;
1. Remote employees are expected to remain accessible via phone, email, and any other
gpproved communication channels during approved working houts.
2. Employees must promptly respond to requests and communications from colleagues,
supervisors, and ACCHD leadership.

Data Security and Confidentiality:

1. Employees must complete Data Security and Confidentiality training armually and at
any other time required by ACCHD, ,

2. Employees will be trained in social engineering and phishing scams,

3. Remote employees are responsible for safegnarding confidential and sensitive
information. and for preventing the disclosure of such information to third parties,

4, ACCHD-provided equipment, sofiwate, and data must be used in accordance with
ACCHD's data security policies and practices.

Equipment and Supplies:
. ACCIHD will provide necessary equipment and supplies for remote work, such as
laptops and software licenses.

2. Employoecs are responsible for the proper use and maintenance of ACCHD equipment.

3. Employees must comply witk any and afl ACCHD policies regarding the use of
ACCHD equipment and supplies.

4. Alluse of ACCHD equipment and supplies will be monitered and employees have
no expectation of privacy with regard to their use of ACCHD equipment and
supplies,

Performance Expeciations:
1. Remote empleyees will be held to the same performance standards and expectations
as on-site eroployces.

2. Supervisors will regularly assess remote employees' performance and communicate
Teedback.

Training and Professional Development;
Remote employees will complete all necessary training to enhance their remote work
effectiveness.

Remote Worl Termination:
1. ACCHD teserves the right to terminate or modify temote work arrangements at any
time, with or without cause and with or without prior notice.
2. Employees may also request to refurn fo on-site work, subject to approval by their
supervisor and department head.

Compliance:

All remote employees must adhere to this policy and all other ACCHD policies and
procedures,

92



Review and Revision:
This policy will be reviewed annually and/or sooner if any changes occur to reflect

technological changes, best practices, and operational needs, Any updates to this policy will
be effective as of the date of such update.

By participating i remote work, employees acknowledge their understanding and acceptance
of the terms outlined in this policy. ACCHD is committed to supporting temote worlk
arrangements that benefit employees and the organization,

Remote Work Guidelines
To ensure a safe and functional wotk environment, employees will implement all of the
following necessary se¢urity controls fo the fullest extent:

1,

2,

L

Employees working remotely will be provided with VPN instructions. Bmployees
must ensure that VPN is utilized for all remote work.

Data sharing through external cloud applications (OneDrive, etc.) is resiricted to only
the T'exas Department of State Health Setvices (“DSHS”) or company-approved
spplications.

Only use ACCHD-issued devices fot remoto wotl; personal devices are prohibited,
Devices used to connect remotely (laptops and PCs) will utilize encryption.

Access to Sensitive Company Information, Personally Identifiable Information
(“PIX”), and electronic Protected Health Information (“ePHI™) will be
restricted/limited when an employes is not using a secure workspace or device.
Incident Response procedures will include response to incidents originating from or
affecting employess working remotely.

Employees will be trained on common social engineering and phishing scams Secure
workspace: '

L

2.

I S S

Employees must be able to lock laptops, devices, and any business-relevant
information when not in use,

Laptops and devices should be locked out of sight and/or in the trunk if left
unattended in a vehicle,

Any other business-relevant information {i.e., paper documents with sensitive
information) should be limited and stored securely; it is pteferred not to take paper
documents off campus.

Remote work staff should know their environment and who is around them.
Safely perform conversations without visitors eavesdropping or shoulder surfing,
Use screen protectors when necessary.

Restrict the use of devices containing business-relevant information.

Employees will not let family members, friends, or anyone but themselves use
company-owned computers.

Remote Network Security:

L.

2.

Wireless security
a. Always chanpge default Wi-Fi Router passwords
Enable WPA-2 or higher encryption.

93



3
4.
5
6.

7.
Emplo

I S o

. Busure your local router firmware is up to date,

The usge of public Wi-Fi should be limited,

. Always use a VPN when connecting to public Wi-Fi, Never use public Wi-Fi to send

sengitive information without a VPN,
Ensure devices are secure with antivirus and antimalware software.

Ensure pagswords sre changed periodically (monthly or quarterty),
yee Awareness:

Be extremely cantious of email phishing scams,

Limit the use of social media to company-related tasks only,

Do not reveal business itineraries, corporate info, or daily routines.
Staff should know their environment and who is around them.

Safely perform conversations without visitors eavesdropping or shoulder surfing,
Use screen protectors when necessary.

94



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 700

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Information on Immigration Status
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: New Policy

Clarification of Non-Applicability of Executive Order GA-46 to the Angelina County &
Cities Health District

On August 8, 2024, Governor Greg Abbott issued Executive Order GA~46, requiring hospital
providers in the State of Texas to collect and report patient immigration status during hospital
intake, as well as fo submit quarterly reports to the Texas Health and Humsn Services :
Commission (HEISC). These reports are to include the number of emergency visits and inpatient
discharges categorized by immigration status, along with the cosis of care for individuals who

are not lawfully present in the United States.

The Angelina County & Cities Health District (ACCIID) has reviewed the Bxacutive Order in
the context of its orgenizational structure, legal foundation, and public health mission. Based on
this review, the Health District has deterniined that Executive Order GA-46 does not apply to
ACCHD, and no action is required under its provisions.

Health District History:

ACCHD was created under Chapter 121, Subchaptor I of the Texas Health and Safety Code,
throngh a cooperative agresment between Angelina County and the municipalities of Dibol],
Hudson, Huntington, Lufkin, and Zavalla, This agreement, last smended and restated with an
effective date of January 1, 2026, clearly defines ACCHD as a public health entity-——not a
hospital system. ACCIID provides essential public health services such ss environmental health
inspections, comniunicable discase control, public health education, immunizations, and health
preparedness. ACCHD does not operate hospitals, nor does it provide emergency or inpatient
medical care as defined by the Executive Order,

Executive Order GA-46 explicitly applics to kospital providers and imposes no mandates on
public health districts, local health departments, or outpatient service providers, No language in
the order expands its scope to include entities like ACCHD, Furthermors, the cooperative
agreement establishing ACCHD expressly limits ACCHD’s authority and function to non-
hospital, community-besed public health operations, In accordance with both-state law and

96



fedetal public health obligations, ACCHD provides services to all individuals regardless of
immigration status. ACCHD is committed to maintaining the confidentiality, dignity, and health
rights of all residents of Angelina County. Staff are not required to inquire about, collect, or
report immigration status during the provision of any ACCHD program or service, As a result of
this legal and operational analysis, ACCHD affirms that it is not subject to the requirements of
Executive Order GA-46 and will not tmplement data collection or reporting procedures
associated with the order.

96



Angelina County & Personnel Policy/Procedure
Cities Health District Policy Number 1100

Administrator Chairman of the Board

Subject: Information Technology (XT) .and Security Policy
Effective Date: May 21, 2025

Supersedes: October 34, 2024

Policy:

Angelina County & Cities Health District (“ACCHD") will promote a secure eavironment for
the handling, processing, storage, and transmission of sensitive data. This policy ensures
compliance with applicable federal and state laws, particularly the Texas Health and Human
Services Commission (“TTHSC”) Data Use Agreement (“DUA™), HIPAA, and related
cybersecurity standards. Tt also aims to protect ACCHD's assets from unauthorized access,
disclosure, alteration, and destruction. This policy applies to all ACCHD employees,
contractors, interns, volunteers, and third-party service providers who access, handle, or manage
sensitive or confidential information In any form, including but not limited to electronic, paper,
or verbal. It governs the use of all informnation systems, computing devices, and network
infragtructure owned or operated by ACCHD.

1. Data Classification and Handling

1.1 Data Classification:
ACCHD handles large volumes of sensitive information, including Protected Health Tnformation
(“PHI™), which is regulated under HIPAA and the HHSC DUA. As such, proper data
classification is vital to ensuring the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of critical health
data, All data collected or processed by ACCHID shall be classified into one of the following
four categories:
a. Public: Information intended for public dissemination such as press releases and
published reports, Minimal protection is required.
b. Internal: Operational data not meant for public release but not classified as sensitive,
Examples include internal meeting schedules and general administrative records.
¢. Confidential: Information that, if disclosed, could negatively impact operations, clients,
ot employees. Includes internal memos, personnel records, and non-public financial
information.
d. Restricted; The most sensitive classification, including PHI, Personally Identifiable
Information (“PII"), and financial records. Disclosure of Restricted data could result in
legal, regulatory, ot financial penalties and severely impact community trust.

97



Due te ACCHD’s role as a health agency, Restricted data—particularly PHI—must be troated
with the highest level of security and oversight, A data classification matrix will define storage,
transmission, access, and disposal conttols based on the classification level. This matcix is
reviewed and approved annually by the Information Security Officer (“1S0™),

1.2 Data Protection:

a. Restricted and Confidential data must be encrypted at rest and in transit using indugiry-
standard encryption protocols (e.g,, ABS-256, TLS 1.2 or higher).

b. PHI must never be transmitted via unencrypted ewail or stored on unapproved devices or
locations, including personal email accounts or cloud storage servicos.

¢, Encryption keys must be safeguarded in secure key vaults or Hardware Security Modules
(“BISMs”} with access restricted to authorized IT staff only.

d. Sensitive data must be redacted or anonymized whenever possible for analytics or
fraining purposes.

L.3 Physical Security of Paper Records:

2. All printed PHI and PIT must be stored in locked cabinets in acoess-controlled areas, Only
authorized personnel may retricve these documents.

b. Workstations that display PHI must be positioned to prevent unauthotized viewing (e.g.,
nsing privacy screens).

¢. Employees must avoid leaving printed PHI in open areas or unattended. Clean desk
policies must be enforced,

d. Printed PHI rust be cleatly labeled and tracked when transferred between departments.

1.4 Data Pisposal;

a. Electronic data must be sanitized using DoD 5220.22-M or NIST SP 800-88 Rev 1
methods prior to device retirement or repurposing,

b. Paper records containing PHI or other Restricted information must be shredded using
cross~cut shredders or securely destroyed through certified vendors.

¢. Disposal procedures must be logged, and certificates of destruction must be retained for
audit purposes,

d. Unauthorized disposal or mishandling of sengitive data constitutes a policy violation and
may result in cisciplinary action, up to and including termination, or legal action.

By clearly identifying and enforeing data classification levels—especially for PRI—ACCHD

strengthens its ability to maintain trost, comply with legal obligations, and safeguard the health
information of the commuunities it serves.

2. Aceess Control

To maintain a secure environment that protects patient health data and sensitive operational
systerns, ACCHL enforces rigorous access control measures, These controls are foundational to
data confidentiality and system integrity, ensuring that users only inferact with the resources
necessary for their rales. This section outlines the ptinciples, authentication practices, and
physical safeguards in place to manage access across the organization,

98



2.1 Least Privilege Principle;

i,

Access to ACCHD systems, epplications, and data must be governed by the principle of
least privilege. Bach user should have only the minimum access nacessary to perform
their assigned duties.

Role-specitic accoss must be defined and assigned by department managers in
collaboration with XT Security,

Periodic access recertification must be conducted quartetly to verify and update
permissions, especially after role changes, leaves of absence, or terminations,

2.2 Authenfication Requirements:

a.

All system users must be assigned unique usernames and secure passwords that meet
complexity standerds (minimum 12 characters, including uppercase, lowercase, numbers,
and special characters).

Account lockouts must ocour after five failed login attempts and may only be reset by IT
administrators,

Pagswords must be changed every 180 days and may not be reused within the five
previous vegsions,

Service accounts and application eredentials must be tightly controlled, rotated regularly,
and never hatdeoded into scripts or applications.

2.3 Role-Based Access Control (“RBAC”);

&

b.

Agcess rights must be provisioned using a documented RBAC model aligned with job
functions and organizational unjts.

AlIRBAC roles nmust be reviewed and approved by the ISO and Human Resources to
ensure appropriafeness,

Temporary access for projects or audits must be time-limited and automatically expire
based on predefined criteria.

Access provisioning and de-provisioning workflows must be tracked via ticketing or
identity management systems.

2.4 Multi-Factor Authentication (“MIA”);

&

b.

MFA is mandatory for access to any system that handles PHI, P1I, or financial
information, and all remote aceess,

Acceptable MFA mechanisms includs hardware tokens, authenticator apps, biometric
identifiers, or SMS verification (used only as a fallback),

Users must be enrolled in MFA during onbosarding, and token/device enrollment must be
reviewed annually, :

Break~glass (emergency access) accounts must have restricted access and be monitored
continuously.

2.5 Badge-Bascd Physical Access Conirol:
a. AILACCHD staff must wear and use their assigned ID badges to acoess secure physical

spaces, including offices, clinical areas, data clogets, and server rooms.

b. Badge access logs must be retained and reviewed for anomalies or unauthorized eftep-

hours access,

99



¢. Lost or stolen badges must be reported immediately to HR and Facilities for deactivation
and reigsuance. -

d. Teilgating (umauthorized individuals entering behind a badge user) is prohibited, and staff
are encouraged to challenge or report violations.

2.6 Access Termination and Review:
a. Access must be revoked promptly (within four hours) when an employee separates from
ACCHD or transfers roles.
b, Access reviews must be conducted at least quarterly to verify nser accounts, privileges,
and role assignments,
¢. Dotmant accounts inactive for more than 60 days must be disabled and flagged for
review.

2.7 Privileged Access Management (“PAM™):
a. Privileged accounts (e.g., root, domain admins, database owners) must be centrally
managed using a PAM solution.
b. Privileged sessions must be logged and monitored, and Jjust-in-time access should be used
where feasible.
¢.  Administrative access to production environments must require explicit approval and be
time limited.
By enforcing Jayered access controls and contimuous privilege menagement, ACCHD minimizes
the risk of nauthorized access and onsures only appropriate access to systems containing PHI
and other sensitive data.

3. Aceeptable Use Policy

To safeguard Protected Health Information (PHT) and ensure operational continuity, ACCHD
mandates strict policies poverning the use of computing devices and gystems, As a public health
entity handling sensitive patient data, the integrity and security of every endpoint——from
workstations and laptops to mobile devices—are critical. This section outlines acoeptable nge
standards, restrictions on personal device vsage, and responsibilities tied to ACCHD-issned
hardware and soltware. Employees are expected to maintain vigilant and responsible device
practices to prevent accidental exposare or unauthorized sccess to confidential information,

3.1 Acceptable Activities:
a.  ACCHD computing tesources, including desltops, laptops, tablets, and mobile dovices,
must be used primarily for conducting official business activities,
b, Users must aceess only systems, applications, and data necessary fo fulfill their worlk
respousibilities.
c. Oceagional personal use is permitted if it does not intarfere with work duties, violate thig
policy, or comptomise the security and integrity of ACCHD systems.

3.2 Prohibited Activities:
a. Users are stricily prohibited from using ACCHD systems to access, download, or transmit
atty miaterial that is illegal, offensive, or unrelated to work activities.
b. Use of ACCHD devices for gaming, unauthotized streaming, personal social media
browsing, or cryptocurrency mining is forbidden.

100



¢. The installation or use of unapproved software, tools, or browsor extensions is prohibited.
d. Users must not attempt to bypass security controls or access restricted systems without
proper authorization,

3.3 Monitoring and Enforcement:
a. AILACCHD systems and networks are subject to monitoring for security, performance,
and compliance purposes.
b. Any use of ACCHD IT assets implies consent to such monitoting.
¢. Violations of the Acceptable Use Policy will be documented, investigated, and may result
in disciplinary action up to and inchiding {ermination or legal action, depending on
severity.

3.4 Deviee Usage and PHX Security:

a. Due 1o the sensitive nature of Protected Health nformation (PHT), users must refrain
trom using personal devices to stote, process, or transmit PHI unless the device is
enrolled in ACCHI's Mobile Device Management (“MDM”) platform and explicitly
approved by IT,

b, ACCHD-issued devices must be used for all work involving PHI, financial records, and
other forms of Restricted data, This helps matntain full control over endpoint encryption,
auditing, remote wiping, and compliance enforcement,

c. Devices must auto-lock after 5 minutes of inactivity and requite password or biometric
authentication to unlock.

d. Lost or stolen devices must be reported immediately to the IT depariment so remote wipe
and security incident protocols can be activaied,

3.5 Bring Your Own Device (“BYOD”) Policy:
a. Bmployees who wish to use personal devices for business purposes must request approval
from their supervisor and IT,
b. Approved devices must comply with ACCHD security configurations, including enforeed
encryption, remote wipe capabilities, and endpoint security software.
¢. ACCHD reserves the right to revoke BYOD privileges if a device is found non-compliant
ot if user behavior poses a security risk,
These guidelines are essential for protecting sensitive data, ensuting HIPAA and DUA
compliance, and reducing the risk of data breaches through improper device usage. All
employees are required to acknowledge and adhere to this Acceptable Use Policy anhually.

4. Network and System Security

ACCHDY s network and system infrastructure serve as the backbane for deliveting critical health
services and protecting sensitive information, including PHI and PI, To defend against svolving
cyber threats and ensure uninterrupted access to vital systems, robust security measures are
required at every layer of the technolugy environment. This section details the safeguards
implemented to secure ACCHD's digital ccosystem, including patching protocols, endpoint
Protections, firewalls, intrusion detection, remote access controls, and network segmentation,
These controls are essential not only for FIPAA compliance but for maintaining public trust in
ACCHD’s ability to manage and secure health data,

101



4,1 Patch Management:

a. Al ACCHD systems must be routinely patched to correct known vulnerabilities, Security
patches must be applied within 30 days of release, and critical updates must be deployed
within 72 hours,

b. Patch management procedures must be antomated where possible and tracked in a
ceniralized dashboard for oversight and compliance.

c. Patch testing must ocour in a staging envitonment prior to production deployment to
avoid disruptions to clinical and operational services.

4.2 Endpoint Protection:

a. Bvery endpoint device (desktops, laptops, tablets, mobile devices, etc.) must have active
anfivirys and anti-malware solytions with automatic updates enabled,

b, ACCHD must deploy Endpoint Detection and Response (“EDR*) techuology on all
devices handling or accessing PHI to monitor for behavioral anornalies and respond to
threats in real time.

¢. Devices nust be enrolled in a Mobile Device Management (*"MDM"} solution. to enforce
security policies such as encryption, remote wipe, and compliance checks,

4.3 Firewalls and Intrusion Detection/Prevention Systems (IDS/IPS):
a. Allincoming and outgoing traftic must be filtered through entetprise-grade, statefal
firewalls configured to deny all by default and permit only pecessary fraffic,
b.  ACCHD must operate intrusion detection and prevention systems at both the perimeter
and internal network levels to identify and block malicious activity.

c. Security appliance logs must bo retained for af least 12 months and reviewed regularly by
IT Security staff,

4.4 Secure Remote Access:
8. Any remote access to ACCHD internal systems must ocour via an encrypted Virtoal

Private Network (“VPN™).
b, Split tunneling must be disabled to ensure all traffic routes through ACCHDs secure
gateway during VPN sessions.

¢. Remote desktop protocols must be restricted and monitored, and connections must be
limited to approved 1P addresses where feasible,

4.5 Network Segmentation and Aceess Control Lists (“ACLs™):
4. Network architecture noust follow a segmented model with separate VLANs for
adminigirative systems, clinical systems, guest access, and internet-facing setvices.
b. ACLs must be used to tightly control systems and users can communicate across
segments, minimizing potential attack suifaces.

¢. Sensitive systems (such as those storing PHI or financial data) must be isolated in high-
security netwotk zones with strict firowall rules and limited administrative access,

4.6 Wi-Ii and Wireless Security:

a. ACCHD wireless networks must use WPA3 encryption or WPAZ at a minimum, with
separate SSIDs for staffl, guests, and medical devices.

142



b, Guest wireless access must be completely segmonted from ACCHD’s internal network
and provide no access to internal systems or data. '

6. Wireless networks must be monitored for rogue access points and mauthorized
connections nsing wireless intrusion detection tools.

4.7 Vulnerability Scanning and Penetration Testing:
a, Vulnerability scans nust be conducted annually on all ACCHD systems, with
temediation plans established for any discovered wesknessos.
b, Thir¢-party peneiration testing must be performed anmvally to validate the effectiveness
of technical controls and identify areas of risk,
¢. Resulis fiom vulnerability assessments and penetration tests must be reported to
executive leadership and tracked to resolution. :
By maintaining strong technical safeguards, layersd defense strategies, and continuous
moitoting, ACCHD is working to maintain both the resilience of its network infrastructure

against evolving threats and the capability of protecting the integrity of systems that manage PHI
and other sensitive information,

5. Data Baclup and Recovery

Ensuring the availability and integrity of critical data is paramount for ACCHD’s ability to
deliver yninterrupted healthcars and public health services, In the event of system failure, data
corruption, eyberattack, or natural disastet, reliable backup and recovery mechanisms are
essontial to restoring operations and minimizing data loss—especially when handling PHI. This
section outlines ACCHIY’s approach to data backup, including frequency, eneryption, offsite
storage, testing, and disaster recovery planning, These measures suppett resilience, business
continuity, and compliance with FITPAA and Texas HISC data safeguarding requirements,

5.1 Backup Irequency and Storage:

a. All mission-critical systems, including those handling PIII, financial records, and
clectronic health records (“EHR"), must be backed up daily at minimum, More frequent
backups {e.g., howly incremental backups) are encouraged for high~availability systems,

b. Backup data must be stored in at least two physically and logically separate locations:
one on-premises and one off-site (e.g., secure cloud provider or alternate data center).

¢. All backup media, whether physical or virtual—must be encrypted using FIPS 140-2
validated encryption algorifhuns,

d. Backup jobs must be monitored for success or faihire with automated alerting
mechanisms in place,

5.2 Baclup Testing and Validation:

a. Backup integrity must be tested monthly by petforming test restores of selected datasets.

b. Backup validation reports must be genarated, reviewed by the IT department, and
retained for a minimum of one year.

¢. Any anomalies or failures discovered during testing must be investigated immediately
and addressed within three business days,

d. The ability to restore individual files, full systems, and encrypted backups must be tested
antwally to simulate realistic recovery scenarios,

103



5.3 Disaster Recovery Planning (“DRP”);

8, ACCHD must maintain a written Disaster Recovery Plan that defines recovery time
objectives (“RTO”) and recovery point objectives (“RPO™) for each key systemn,

b. The DRP must include contact lists, roles and responsibilities, step-by-step recovery
procedures, and escalation paths.

¢, Disaster recovery plans must address potential threats such as ransornyare attacks,
natural disasters, hardware failure, and system corruption.

d. The plan must be reviewed and updated antmally, or whenever there is a major change to
ACCHD infrastructure, services, or data sonsiivity levels.

5.4 Disaster Recovery Testing:
a. At least once per year, ACCHD must conduct a full-scale disaster recovery test, including
the restoration of PHI-containing systems and validation of interdependencies.
b.  Results must be documented in a formal report that inchudes timing, identified gaps,
lessons learned, and corrective actions.
c. Findings from disaster recovery tests must be presented to the executive team and
incorporated into future planning,

5.5 Business Continuaity Integration:
2. Backup and disaster recovery planning is aligned with ACCHD’s broader Business
Continuity Plan (“BCP”) to ensure sustained oporations in case of extended oufages.
b.  Critical services such as chinical systems, public health reporting tools, and
communication platforms must have predefined contingencies.
¢. A communication strategy must be included in the BCP to keep staff, patients, and
stakeholders informed during disruptions,

Through diligent backup practices and comprehensive recovery planning, ACCHD safeguards its
data assets and ensures operational continuity in the face of technical fajlures or emergencies.
These measures are essential to maintaining complisnce with HIPAA and the Data Uss
Agreement while preserving public trust.

6. Physical Security

While cybersecurity safeguards protect digital assels, physical security controls are equally vital
in preventing unauthorized access to ACCHD facilities, equipment, and sensitive information
such as PHI. Seouring workspaces, server rooms, and storage areas helps ensure that both data
and personnel remain protocted from theft, tampering, or damage. This section outlines
ACCHD’s standards for badge-based access control, visitor management, secure storage of
physical records, and environmental safeguards. These protocols form a critical layer of defense,
reinforsing the confidentiality and integrity of the ACCHD’s information systems and clinical
operations,

6.1 Facility Access Contirol:
a. All ACCHD employess, contractors, and authorized vigitors must wear vigible, photo-
identifiable badges at all times while on premises,
b. Badges must be used to access all secured areas, including office spaces, clinical
environments, and data centers. Tajlgating or sharing of access cards is sirictly prohibitec.

104



¢. Each badge is individually assigned and must be reported as lost or stolen immediately to
security or administration, Replacerment badges will only be issued with supervisor
authorization.

d. Badge access logs must bo retained for a minimum of 12 months and reviewed
petiodically for ancmalies.

6.2 Server and Network Equipment Protection:
a. AlIT infrastructure, including servers, networlk switches, and backup systers, must be
housed in secure rooms with restricted badge-based access or key based acoess.
b. These areas must be protected with environmental controls (temperature, humidity),
uninterruptible power supplies (UPS), and automatic fire suppression systems.
. Only authorized IT staff with job-specific clearance may access server rooms. All entries
must be logged.

6.3 Visitor Management:
a. All visitors must sign in at reception and be issued temporary visitor badges which
clearly identify them as non-giaff,
b, Visitors must be accompanied by an ACCHD staff member at all times and are not
permitted in seoure areas unless escotted by authorized personnel.
c. Visitor access logs must be retained for at least one year,

6.4 Workstation and Asset Security:
a. All employee workstations must be locked when unattended. Devices must antomatically
Jock after 5 minmtes of inactivity.
b. Laptops and mobile devices must be secured in locked storage cabinets when not in use
or outside of work hours,
¢. Every ACCHD asset must be tagged, inventoried, and agsigned to a specific employee or
department. Upauthorized equipment may not be connected to the ACCHD network,

6.5 Security Camera Monitoring:
a. Video surveillance must be installed at all facility entry and exit poiats, server rooms, and
other critical locations.
b, Recordings must be stored securely for at least 30 days and reviewed if physical security
incidents ocour. _
* Camoera acoess must be restricted to authorized security and administrative staff,

The integrity of ACCHD's physical security program plays a ctitical role in protecting both
sensitive health data and staff. Enforcing mandatory badge access and strict entry condrols
ensures a secure environment that aligns with HIPAA physical safs guard requirements and helps
prevent unauthorized access to systems or records.

7. Incident Response and Breach Notification

Despite preventive controls, security incidents—including data breaches, system compromises,
or unauthorized access—can and do oceur, A structured, timely, znd effective response is
essential to mitigating harm, restoring operations, and folfilling legal obligations. ACCEHD
maintaing a comprohensive Incident Response Plan (“IRP”) aligned with NIST best practices and

105



HIPAA breach notification rules to address any event that could impact the confidentiality,
integrity, or availability of sensitive data, including PHI. This section outlines the processes for
identifying, classifying, responding to, and reporting security incidents assuring that ACCHD
remains prepared to act decisively in the face of cyber or physical threats,

7.1 Incident Response Framework (Based on NIST 800-61 Revision 2)

ACCHD adopts the National Institute of Standards and Technology (“NIST”) Computer Security
Incident Handling Guide framework to provide a structured, consistent approach to managing
security incidents. The framework consists of the following phases:

a. Preparation: Establish and maintain incident response capabilities, including
documented procedures, trained staff, communication channels, and access to
investigation tools. All staff must receive periodic training on recognizing and reporting
incidents.

b. Detection and Analysis: Continuously monitor systems and logs for signs of suspicious
activity. When an event occurs, determine whether it qualifies as a security incident.
Classify incidents by severity (e.g., data breach, malware infection, unauthorized access,
system compromise) and by type (see Section 7.6).

¢. Containment, Eradication, and Recovery:

. Containment: Take immediate steps to limit the impact. This may include
isolating infected systems, disabling compromised accounts, or shutting down
specific services.

ii.  Eradication: Identify the root cause of the incident and remove all traces of
malicious activity. Patch vulnerabilities, clean affected systems, and verify
removal of malware or backdoors.

lii.  Recovery: Restore affected systems and services to operational status. Monitor for
signs of residual issues and validate system integrity before refurning to
production.

d. Post-Incident Activity: Conduct a lessons-learned review within five business days of

resolving an incident. Document the timeline, affected systems, root cause, and corrective
actions. Update response plans and security controls as needed.

Incident Response Framework

- . ) ~%. Detection - {Jontlamr.nent‘ o Post_
Frenaration J B and Analysls »/) Eradication, £ Incident
d ANdlyY SIS F—
B L and Recovery Activity

7.2 Incident Reporting:
a. All employees must immediately report suspicious behavior, phishing attempts, data loss,
or unauthorized access to the ISO via the designated reporting channel.
b. High-severity incidents (e.g., PHI breaches, ransomware) must be escalated within one
hour to the ISO, Executive Leadership, and Legal/Compliance teams.

106



7.3 Breach Notification Procedures:

a. Inthe event of & breach involving PHI or PIL, ACCHD will follow applicable HIPAA

breach notification requirements, including:

1. Notifying affected individuals without unreasonable delay end no later than 60

days after discovery. ‘
ii.  Notifying the Texag HHSC and other regulatory agencies as specified by the
DUA.

iii.,  Por large breaches (500+ individuals), notifying the media and HHS Office for

Civil Rights.

7.4 Retention and Documentation:

a. Allincident reports, investigation records, and related communications must be
rotained for a minimum of six years in corapliance with HIPAA,

b. A ceniralized incident log must be maintained to track trends, recutring issues, and

resolution status.

7.5 Coordination with Law Enforcement:

&. If criminal activity is suspected, ACCHD may report incidents to law enforcement or

state agencies. Coordination must be led by the ISO and the Administrator o ensure legal

compliance and minimal disruption to investigations

7.6 Incident Categories:

To standardize and streamline response procedures, ACCHD classifies incidents into one of the

following five categories:

a. Category 1~ Unauthorized Access and Disclosure: Tncludes any unaguthorized access

to or sharing of PHI, P11, internal data, or ACCHD systerns. Examples: staff accessing

records outside of their job duties, accidental disclosute of PHI via email.

b. Category 2 — Malware and Malicious Code: This encompassos infections caused by
vituses, ransomware, spyware, o other malicioys software. Examples: phishing emajl

downloads malware, ransorwars encrypts critical servers,

¢. Category 3 - Denial of Service and Disraption: Incidents that resylt in the interruption

of ACCHD operations or services. Bxamples: Do8 attacks on public health weDbsites,

power outages affecting critical systems, telecommunications failure,

d. Category 4 — Physical Security and Device Compromise: Includes the theft, logs, o

unauthorized physical acoess to devices containing sensitive information. Examples: lost

laptops containing PHI, break-ins to secute areas, unsuthorized individuals accessing

SETVRT T00ms.,

¢, Category 5 - Environmental and Natural Disaster Events: Unexpected events that

impact physical or digital infrastructure due to forces beyond human conirol. Examples:
fires that damage server rooms, floods that affect data center operations, earthquakes or

hurricanes that disrupt communications and data access, These incidents Tequire both
physical safety protocols and data recovery procedures to ensure continued operations

and integrity of PHI.

107



Bech category has an associated playbook with tafloted contaitment, communication, and
escalation protocols, Incident handlers are requited to reference and follow the appropriate
playbook duting triage and resolution.

A well-executed incident response program easures that ACCED can quickly and effectively
address security threats, mitigate hatin, meet legal obligations, and improve future resilience,

8. Training and Awareness

A well-informed workforce is one of the most effective defenses against security threats and
privecy violations, Given the sensitive nature of the data, ACCHD handles—particularly
Protected Health Information (PHI)—ongoing training and awareness are essential for ensuring
that employees understand their responsibilities and act in accordance with security best
practices, This section outlines the organization’s approach to security education, including
mandatory training programs, role-specific instruction, phishing simulations, and awareness
campaigns. By cultivating a culture of seoutity and accountability, ACCHD empowers gll
personnel to be proactive stewards of data protection and regulatory compliance.

8.1 Mandatory Amnual Training;

ACCHD steff, including full-tite, part-time, contractors, interns, and volunteers, must complete
mandatory annual training on cybersecurity, HIPAA compliance, data privacy, and the proper
handling of PHI, This training ensures that smployees are aware of their responsibilities and the
latest threats that could jeopardize sensitive information, Completion of training is filed in
personnel tecords. Railure to comply may resylt in suspension of system access until training is
corpleted,

8.2 Role-Based Security Training:

Specialized training is required for personnel with elevated responsibilities, such as system
administrators, network engineers, developers, and those with direct access fo PHI o sensitive
data, This training includes:

Seeure systern configuration.

Aceess control principles.

Encryption standards.

Vulnerability management.

Incident response execution.

8.3 Onboarding and Refresher Courses;

New hires must complete a security orientation before receiving access to any ACCHD systoms
or physical facilities. Refresher training will be provided semi-anrually or in response to
significant policy updates, system up grades, or major incidents,

8.4 Phishing and Social Engineering Simulations:

Quarterly phishing sinwlations are conducied to measure uger awarencss and responsivensss to
real-world attack scenarios. Staff who fail sitnulations will be required to complete remedial
training. Additional social engineering assessments (e.8., vishing, tailpating tests) may be
performed to evalvate and strengthen employee vigilance.

108



8.5 Security Awareness Campaigns:

ACCHD will regularly conduct internal awareness campaigns through posters, newsletters,
emails, and team meetings to reinforce best practices in:

s Email and password hygiene,

Identifying suspicious links and attachments,

Proper data disposal procedyres.

Physical security, including badge usage and visitor control,

. » @

8.6 Badge Access Awarenoss:
Because physical security is essential to protecting PHI, all employees must visibly display thejr
ACCHD-issned ID badges while on-site and use them to access secure areas. Staff will be
frained on;

o Never sharing or lending badges.

# Repotting lost or stolen badges immediately,

° Ensuring doors close securely after entry,

@ Challenging unknown or wnbadged individuals in restrictod zZones,

8.7 Measurement and Contlanous Improvement:

Training effectiveness will be evaluated using assessments, simulations, and post-incident
reviews. Reedback will be incorporated into future training materials, and awareness levols will
be tracked as a performance indicator for organizational secutity posture. By embedding a
culiure of security awareness, ACCHD ensures that its workforce remains the first line of
defense against cyber threats and human errot, particularly when handling sensitive health
information,

9. Third-Party and Vendor Security

Vendors and third-patty setvice providets play a critical role in ACCHD's operations, but they
also introduce potential risks to data privacy and system integrity. To safeguard Protected Healih
Information (PHI} and ensure regulatory compliance, all external partaers must adhere to the
same rigotous securily standards as internal staff. This section defines the policies governing
vendor selection, contract requirements, secutity assessments, monitoring, and breach
accountability, Through careful oversight and clear expectations, ACCHD ensures that ifs
partierships support, not compromise, the confidentiality, availability, and integrity of its data
and services,

9.1 Contractual and Compliance Requirements:

All third-party vendars, contractars, or partners with access to ACCHD systems, data, or
facilities must sign a DUA, Business Associate Agreetnent (“BAA”) if PHI is involved, and a
Non-Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”). These documents ensue that all third parties are
contractually obligated to maintain the same security standards ACCHD is held to under HIPAA,
the Texas HHSC DUA, and other applicable regulations,

9.2 Security and Risk Assessments:
Vendors that store, process, or transmit PEI or PII on behalf of ACCHD must undergo a security
risk assessment before onboarding, This includes a review of the vendor’s:

8. Seeurity policies and procedures.

109



b. Data encryption practices.

¢, Access controls,

d. Breach notification processes.

Compliance with frameworks such ag FHIPAA. or NIST.

Risk assessments must be updated annually or if the vendor changes service scope,
infrastructure, or data handling practices.

b

9.3 Ongoing Monitoring and Andits;

ACCHD reserves the right to audit any vendor systems or practices relevant to its data security,
This may include on-site inspections, penetration testing (where applicable), documentation
review, and review of SOC 2 or HIPAA audit reports. Any findings must be remediated within a
defined and agreed-upon timeframe,

9.4 Cloud Service Providers (“CSPs™):
All CSPs used by ACCHD must support HIPAA compliance and provide written assurances of
adherence to applicable secutity frameworks, PHI stored in cloud environments must be:

a. Encrypted at rest and in transit,

b. Segregated from other custormer environments (via logical separation),

¢. Monitored via activity logs and alerting mechanisma.

d. Accessible only to authorized personnel using multi-factor authentication.

9.5 Access and Data Minimization;
Vendors must follow the principle of least privilege, ensuting only persotmel with a legitimate
business need can access ACCHD systems or data. Access must;

2, Be time-bound and role-based.

b. Require individual user accounts,

¢. Be disabled promptly once no longér needed,

9,6 Incident and Broach Responsibilities;

Thied parties must immediately report any suspected or actual security incident, data breach, or
policy violation involving ACCHD data to the 1SO. Breach response responsibilities, timelines,
and penalties for non-complianice must be clearly defined in vendor confracts,

9.7 Termination and Oftboarding:

Upon termination of a contract, vendors must return or destroy all ACCHD data according to
seoure data disposal guidelines. Written confirmation ot a certificate of data destruction must be
submitted to the ISO. All access credentials and system petinissions must be revoked within 24
hours of contract termination,

Through rigorous vetting, monitoring, and contractual enforcement, ACCHD ensures that afl
third-party relationships uphold its high standards for protecting PHI and sensitive information,

10. Policy Management and Compliance _

Effective security policies are only meaningfol if they are actively maintained, enforced, and
aligned with evolving risks and regulations. ACCHD’s commitment fo safeguarding sensitive
data, including PHI, requires ongoing oversight of its information secutity policies and practices,

110



This section details the governance structyre for pelioy development, review, auditing,
enforcement, and user acknowledgment. It also outlines internal and external compliance
responsibilities, ensuring that ACCHD meets the expectations of HIPAA, the Toxas HEHSC Data
Use Agteement, and other applicable regulatory bodies while fostering a cultvre of
acoountability across the organization,

10.1 Policy Ovwnership and Governance:

The ACCHD Designated ISO ig responsible for maintaining, updating, and enforcing this
Information Security Policy. The ISO must coordinate with executive leadership, compliance
officers, I management, and logal counsel fo ensure that the policy aligns with organizational
objectives and complies with all relevant re gulations, including TIIPAA, HITECH; and the Texag
HHSC Data Use Agreement,

10.2 Policy Review and Updates:
This policy must be teviewed and formally approved on an annual basis or upon any significant
change in:

8. Federal or state regulations.

b. Organizational siructure or processes,

¢. Threat landscape or risk posture.

d. Tmplementation of new systems, vendors, or infrastructure.
All revisions must be logged with version history, including the date, author, teviewer, and
surnmary of changes.

10.3 Internal Compliance Audits:
ACCHD shall conduct internal audits of its seourity and privacy practices at least annually,
Audlits shall assess: .

a, Adherence to technical and administrative safeguards.

b, Implementation of accoess controls and logging,

¢, Incident response preparedness.

d. Data classification and handling practices.

e. Vendor compliance and contract enforcement,
Audit findings must be decumented in an internal report and shared with executive leadership.
Identified deficiencies must be addressed through a formal corrective action plan with clear
owners and deadlines,

10.4 Regulatory Compliance and External Audits;
As a covered entity under HIPAA and a data custodian for the Texas HHSC, ACCHD must be
prepared for regulatory assessments, including:

a. HIPAA audits conducted by the FIHS Office for Civil Rights (“OCR”).

b. Data Use Agreement compliance asscssments by HHSC,

¢. Any other audits as mandated by state or federal authorities.
The IS0 is responsible for coordinating all regulatory responses and maintaining required
documentation,

111



10.5 Enforcement and Disciplinary Actions:
Violations of this policy, whether intentional or accidental, may result in disciplivary action
including, but not limited to:

a. Mandatory retraining,

b. Revocation of system access.

¢, Written reprimands.

d. Suspension or immediate termination of employment.

¢. Legal action, if warranted,
Disciplinary meesures must be consistent, fuir, and documented in accordance with ACCHIy
Human Resources policies,

10.6 User Acknowledgment and Awareness:
All employees, contractors, and third-party users must read and acknowledge the ACCHD
Information Secutity Policy annvelly via a sighed agreement or electronic form.
Acknowledgment will confizm:

8. Understanding of their responsibilities,

b. Agreement to comply with the policy.
_ ¢. Awateness of the consequences of non-compliance,

By establishing a yobust policy governance structure, ongoing audit programs, and strong

enforcement mechanisms, ACCHD maintains s culture of accountability and regulatory
alignment across the organization,

IL Privacy and Confidentiality

At the core of ACCHD’s mission is o responsibility to protect the privacy of the individuals it
serves. As a HIPAA-covered entity, ACCHD must uphold the strictest standards for
sefeguarding PHI and PII, This section outlines the principles and practices that govern how
sensitive information is collected, accessed, used, shared, and protected, It also dofines the rights
of individuals under HIPAA, the importance of data minimization, and the respongsibilities of
staff to maintain confidentiality in both digital and physical envitonments, These measures are
vital to maintaining public trust and regulatory compliance.

11.1 HIPAA Compliance and Commitment to Privacy:

As a covered entity under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act ("HIPAA™),
ACCHD is legally and ethically obligated to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability
of PHL All privacy end confidentiality practices at ACCHD are guided by HIPAA’s Privacy
Rule, Security Rule, and Breach Notification Rule, as well as by tho Texas Llealth and Safety
Code and HHSC Data Use Agreement requiternents. PHT includes any individually identifiable
health information that relates to a person’s physical or mental condition, treatment, ot payment
history. All staff must understand that mishandling PHI can lead 1o o gulatory penalties, civil
lawsuits, and loss of community trust,

IL.2 Data Minimization and Use Limitation:
2. ACCHD shall only collect, use, and disclose the minimuzg amount of PHI necessary fo
accomplish a legitimate business or healthcare purpose (Minimum Necessary Standard).
b. All data requests and disclosures must be documented and reviewed to ensure they align
with authorized purposes.

112



¢. Systems handling PHI must be configured fo limit access and viewing to relevant
petsonnel based on role.

11.3 Patient Rights and Information Transparency:
Patients have specific rights under HIPAA, including the right fo;

a. Access and obtain a copy of their heglth records,

b. Request cortections to inaccurate daty.

¢. Receive an acvounting of disclosyres. ‘

d. Request restrictions on the use or disclosure of their information.

e. File complaints with ACCHD’g Privacy Officer or the HHS Office for Civil Rights,
ACCHD will establish clear procedures to respond to such requests in accordance with federa]
and state laws and within the required timeframes,

11.4 Confidentiality Agreements:
All employees, contractors, and volunteers st sigh confidentiality agreements upon hire and
re-sign annually. These agreoments confirm the ndividual’s understanding of their obligation to:
* Protect PHI and other sensitive data from unauthorized access, use, or disclosure,
* Report suspected breaches or violations immediately.
Retiain from accessing records not relevant to their job duties

11.5 Workplace and Verbal Privacy Practices:
&, Conversations involving PHI must be conducted in private areas whenever possible,
b, Staff must avoid discussing patient details in hallways, public areas, or over unsecured
communication channels. .
¢ Computer screens disptaying PHI should not be visibie to unauthorized individeals, and
privacy screens should be used where applicable,

11.6 Physical and Techuical Protections of Confidential Data:
2. All printed PHI must be stored in locked ateas and shredded when no longer needed,
b. Access to systems storing P must bs protected by user authentication, access control
logs, and aytomatic timeont settings.
c. Mobile devices used to access or transmit PHI must be encrypted and enrolled in
ACCHD’s MDM platform.

11.7 Training and Relnforeement: All staff nyust complete annual FIIPAA and privacy training
to reinforce best practices and legal responsibilities, Real-world case studies, scerario-bagod
exercises, and recent bireach examples will be incorporated to build practical knowledge and
awareness. By embedding HIPAA principles into its daily operations, ACCHD demonstrates its
uawavering commitment to the protection of individval privacy and the tesponsible stewardship
of sensitive health information,

12, Logging and Monitoring ‘

Continuous visibility into system activity is essential for detecting threats, ensuring
accountability, and responding effectively to incidents involving sensitive data. Logging and
monitoting are core components of ACCHD’s security architecture, enabling proactive ovetsight
of system access, data, interactions, and potential vulnerabilities. Thig section describes the

113



organization’s standards for audit logging, real-time monitoring, log retention, and forensic
readiness, By capturing and analyzing security-relevant events, ACCHD strengthens its ability to
deteet anomalies, ttace unauthorized actions, and demonstiate compliance with HIPAA and other
regulatory frameworks,

12.1 System Logging Requirements:
To ensure accountability and support forensic investigations, ACCHD requires that all ctitica]
sysiems, including those that handle PHI, financial data, user access, and configuration changes,
generate and maintain detailed log files, These logs must include:

User authentication and login attempts (successful and failed),
Changes to access rights and user rolo, :
System configuration changes,
File access, creation, deletion, and modification activities involving sensitive data,
Security aletts and intrusion detection/prevention events.

I R A

12.2 Log Retention and Protection:

1. All audit logs must be retained for a minimum of 12 months, with longer retention as
required by HIPAA or fegal proceedings,

b. Logs must be stoted in secure, tamper-resistant systems that prevent unauthorized
modification or deletion,

¢. Log storage systems must support accoess control, encryption, and hashing to ensure
confidentiality snd integtity. '

d.Archived logs must be backed up ag part of the organization’s disaster rscovery plan,

12.3 Real-Time Monitoring and Alerting;

& ACCHD will employ a Security Information and Fvent Management (STEM) solution io
aggregate and analyze log data in real time,

b. 'The SIEM system must bo configured with alerts for suspicious behavior such as
excessive login failures, data exfiltration indicatozs, off-hours system access, privilege
escalations, and malware signatures,

c. Alerts must be triaged and investi gated promptly by the I'T sceurity toam.,

12.4 Access o Logs:
& Access to system and security logs shall be restricted to authorized personnel only.
b, All access to logs must itself be logged, reviewed, and retained,

¢, Auditors and invostigators must recejve read-only aceess under the principle of least
privilege,

12.5 Periodic Review and Audit of Logs:
a. ACCHD security petsonnel must petrform monthly reviews of system logs to identify
anomalies, frends, and gaps in compliange,
b. Findings from log reviews must bs documented and addressed through remediation
efforts, including user education or system reconfiguration.

¢. Annual audits must include a full review of log integrity, completencss, and compliance
with logging policies.

14



Angelinn Coanty & . Porsemmal

Chtlos Flonlth Distriet Pollop/rosesfire Pollay
- Nembor 302
FL
ity
l'-""’ i \” G ]
Admnfstrator T ) Eiiilil‘lﬂﬁﬂ ot fiso Boars _
) ‘U;‘"‘,f iy s
Hubiject: Compmsatory Tims

Effeoiive Datos April 36, 2624
Bupersedes: Juno 19, 1896

g

Polloy: The Angeitna County & Cltles Poalth Dsteiot will provide compensasory Hms 1o
employen fhr exeens howts worked while porfoerlng required dutios ouisida of nottreal duty botss, The
amnployee’s divack supareivor st preapprove all compensntory time hefore heing vavnoq,
Braployoes should plan theit work sohodile so that the: tequizomont fop compensatity time {s kopt ot 4
absolute mintmme, Bmployess ate expooted to attange telr travel sobudules o permdt tinvel while an
offielal business duting vegular worklng haurs, In some oares, it may be teconsary for an vinployos to
travel whilo on offielal bustnens at ey other than duckng work hanss, and the employee wifi be given
oredit for frivel Himes as working tine, '

All nonexernpt employees shall enm overtlne wetpensatoty tine for any thne they work 1o sxoess of
40 Boud I s workweek, Suoh overime Yompehastory e shall be ot the rate of otio and oterltnl hous
for cuch kowr they work In oxcess of 40 Lo iy 8 Workweel, Loave pursuatt to overtime campehsatory
e on a.ona-and-a-holf basls must be salson a9 oo a8 cofvenlent eflor it 1y earied,

Ropulat compenaataty tine 18 granted to all exempt sployees aud 4 all non-sxenpk smployees who
work mute thai 40 howrs i agy giver waek Tor overtimo spent atwouk, other than novmns chity hougs,
Rogular compensatory time wlil b granted on 5 on-f-0n0 bagly, nod such lomye must bo taken AR SODN
a9 1t i eonveniont after botng eatned, At no thmo will an dodividyal oatey a compensatory Hime balansa
greater (hat 24 hoves,

All overtio tust bo dooumentsd on the etnployoe tinteshoot un a monthly basts, Any omployse
tequontlag ootpennatory e mast submli o leave #ouant tu thor immediats suporvisor dooumenting
sotigiansatory e eatned. Compensatory tie whl ba nsed bofios any othet typo of leave,

Upan terminatlon of uploymsnt, an eimployes shall b pudd for unsed sompanisatory Hine epned ata
oompehsation tate not less than (1} the BYorage togulen vato rovelved by such oimployee quitngy the Taw

three yeats of th employee's eimploymott oy (23 the ftoul rogulis rate reselved by swoh amployoe,
whichever 12 highor,

24
116



Angelina County & Cities Health District
Proposed F¥2026 Toliday Schedule

Holiday Date
Labor Day 09/01/25
Thanksgiving 11727425
Christmas Eve Day 12724/25
Christmas Day 12/25/25
New Year's Day 01/01/26
Martin Luther King Jr. Day 01/19/26
President's Day 02/16/26
Memorial Day 05/25/26
Personal Day

#¥ The personal day is to be designated by the employee with supervisor's

g

Week Day

Monday
Thorsday
Wednesday
Thursday
Thursday
Monday
Monday
Monday

approval. The personal day must be taken as a full work day. Ifthe
day is not uged during the fiscal year, it will be forfeited,

117




